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State of Nefw Jersey

CHRIS CHRISTIE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY ANDREW P. SIDAMON-ERISTOFF
Governor OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET State Treasurer
P.0. BOX 221
KIM GUADAGNO TRENTON, NJ 08625-0221 CHARLENE M. HOLZBAUR
Lt. Governor Director

January 9, 2013

Governor Chris Christie
Members of the State Legislature
New Jersey Citizens

In accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.52:27B-46, it is our pleasure to transmit to you the State of New Jersey’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The Department of the Treasury’s
Office of Management and Budget prepared this report, and is responsible for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of all data
presented, including all disclosures.

This CAFR presents the financial position and operating results of the State under generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) applicable to State and local governments, as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The State also participates in the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada’s
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting review program.

The State operates in accordance with the standards provided in GASB Statements No. 34 and No. 35. In addition to
providing traditional fund financial statements, the objective of this reporting model is to provide a single, unified, transparent
picture of the State’s fiscal health; thus, this CAFR clearly displays all of the State’s revenues, costs, assets, and liabilities. This
report also includes a Management’s Discussion and Analysis section, which provides users with an objective and easy-to-read
analysis of New Jersey’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We are confident that the data is accurate
in all material respects and presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial position and results of the State’s
operations, as measured by the fiscal activity of its various funds, and includes all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain a reasonable understanding of the State’s financial affairs.

NEW JERSEY GOVERNMENT

One of the original thirteen colonies, the State of New Jersey was the third state to ratify the United States Constitution in
1787. Adopted on July 2, 1776, New Jersey’s original State Constitution subsequently was superseded by the State Constitution
of 1844. During the summer of 1947, a constitutional convention met to prepare the current State Constitution, which State
voters ratified in the general election held on November 4, 1947. New Jersey’s State Constitution continues to be a living
document, as State voters passed an amendment creating the position of Lieutenant Governor of New Jersey, effective with the
2009 election. Effective December 8, 2011, it became lawful for the Legislature to authorize wagering on sports events at New
Jersey casinos and horse racetracks, excluding events that take place in New Jersey or in which any New Jersey college team
participates regardless of where the event takes place. The State Constitution divides the powers of government between three co-
equal independent branches: Legislative, Executive, and Judicial.



Legislative Branch Executive Branch Judicial Branch

Senate Assembly Governor Supreme Court Superior Court Tax Court

Lt. Governor

Departments
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Insurance P
|  Children and || Environmental Law and Public || Treasury [
Families Protection Safety
L__| Community Affairs L_| Health and Senior Military and -
Services* Veterans’ Affairs

*P.L. 2012 c.17 reorganized the Division of Aging from Health and Senior Services to Human Services and renamed the Department
of Health and Senior Services to the Department of Health.

Legislative: The State’s bicameral Legislative Branch, which consists of a total of 120 members from 40 legislative districts with
elections held in odd-numbered years, meets in annual sessions in Trenton, the State’s capital. The 40 members of the State
Senate are elected to terms of four years, except for the election following a decennial census, in which case the term is for two
years. The 80 members of the General Assembly are elected to terms of two years. Neither State Senators nor Assembly
Members are subject to term limits. The Office of Legislative Services (OLS) is a nonpartisan agency that provides legislators
with legal, fiscal, research, information, and administrative services. Key OLS positions include an executive director, a
legislative counsel, the state auditor, a legislative budget and finance officer, a director of central staff, a director of data
management, and a director of administration.

Executive: The Office of the Chief Executive, which oversees the entire Executive Branch, consists of the Governor, the
Lieutenant Governor, Cabinet-level department heads, and staff who are responsible for carrying out the Governor’s
constitutional powers and duties. Upon direct election by a plurality of the State’s voters, both the Governor and the Lieutenant
Governor may serve two successive terms of four years. With the exception of the Secretary of Agriculture, who is chosen by the
Board of Agriculture with the Governor’s approval, the New Jersey State Constitution grants the Governor the authority to
appoint the entire cabinet as well as all Superior Court Judges and county prosecutors, subject to confirmation by the New Jersey
Senate. Department heads remain in office until their successors are named and confirmed by the Senate; the only exceptions are
the Attorney General and the Secretary of State, who are appointed to serve throughout the Governor’s entire term. Although the
State Constitution permits a maximum of 20 departments, the State’s payroll consisted of approximately 60,500 employees in 15
departments as of January 2012. The Executive Branch also oversees the performance of 566 municipalities and 603 school
districts, and the incarceration and rehabilitation of approximately 20,800 prisoners. In addition to reliable transportation and
protection for the State’s citizenry and environment, the Executive Branch provides social services for one out of every seven
New Jersey citizens.

Judicial: New Jersey’s Supreme Court consists of a Chief Justice, who is the administrative head of all courts under the State’s
jurisdiction, as well as six Associate Justices. In addition to Municipal and Tax Courts located throughout the State, there are
Superior Courts, with a minimum of two Judges, in each of New Jersey’s 21 counties. After nomination by the Governor and
subsequent confirmation by the State Senate, all Supreme Court Justices and Superior Court Judges serve initial terms of seven
years. Should they be deemed eligible by both the Governor and the State Senate, Supreme Court Justices and Superior Court
Judges acquire tenure with retirement at age 70 as mandated by the State Constitution. For purposes of judicial administration,
the State is divided into 15 vicinages, each consisting of a single county or a combination of counties. The Administrative Office
of the Courts provides support services. Approximately seven million new cases are filed in New Jersey’s courts every year,



including six million in Municipal Court and one million in Superior Court. These cases address matters concerning civil,
criminal, and family law.

With a total land area of 7,417.3 square miles, New Jersey ranks as the fifth smallest state within the United States of
America. An estimated population of 8,821,000 as of July 2011 makes New Jersey the eleventh largest state in population, as
well as the most densely populated of all the states with an average of 1,189 people per square mile.

The higher education system in New Jersey includes three public research universities, nine State colleges and universities,
19 community colleges, 14 independent four-year colleges and universities, seven proprietary institutions with degree-granting
authority, 12 rabbinical schools and theological seminaries, and two independent two-year religious colleges. Effective July 1,
2013, the “New Jersey Medical and Health Sciences Education Restructuring Act” of 2012 abolishes the University of Medicine
and Dentistry of New Jersey (UMDNJ), transfers UMDNJ’s various schools and institutes to Rutgers University and Rowan
University, respectively, and establishes Rowan University as a public research university. Currently, UMDNJ is classified as a
public research university and Rowan University is classified as a State university.

COMPONENT UNITS

In accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, this CAFR for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012 includes the accounts of 21 public authorities and 12 State colleges and universities. Public authorities are
legal, separate entities that are not operating departments of the State. Governing boards are vested with the power to
independently manage. Each component unit is established for a specific purpose for the benefit of the State’s citizenry. GASB
Statement No. 14 provides that the State’s financial statements should emphasize the primary government and permit financial
statement users to distinguish between the primary government and its component units. As a result, the transmittal letter,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and the financial statements focus on the primary government of the State and its
activities, although information pertaining to the component units is presented. For additional information, please see Note 18 —
Component Units.

Executive Order No. 122, signed on July 23, 2004, was established to direct the Board of Directors for each State Authority
to create an Audit Committee whose members are to assist in the oversight of the financial reporting and audit processes of the
Authority. Each member of the Audit Committee is independent of the Authority, with at least one member having a background
in accounting or related financial expertise. The Audit Committee must assist the Board in retaining an independent auditor to
conduct an audit. The auditor selection process must be based on public, competitive bidding principles and shall take place no
less than once every five years. In order to ensure the independence of the auditor selection process, an evaluation committee
shall be established by the Board to conduct the solicitation and evaluation of eligible auditors. The auditor selected shall report
directly to the Audit Committee or the Board. At no time shall the auditor report to any staff member of the Authority. At least
twice a year, the Audit Committee shall hold a private meeting with the auditor. In carrying out these duties, the Audit
Committee shall proactively assist the Board in overseeing the integrity and quality of the Authority’s financial statements, the
Authority’s compliance with legal, regulatory, and ethical requirements, the auditor’s performance and ability to perform, and the
performance of the Authority’s own internal audit and internal control functions.

NEW JERSEY’S ECONOMIC CONDITION

The State and nation have continued their recovery, but growth has been erratic. Job gains in the State were brisk in the first half
of 2012 but employment was little-changed from the spring through October. Nonetheless, in each month through October,
payroll employment in New Jersey has been higher than in the same month of 2011. However, the State still needs to gain
approximately 200,000 jobs to regain the 2008 peak in employment. In an environment of moderate job growth, and some gains
in the labor force, the State unemployment rate moved up to 9.9 percent in August before edging down to 9.7 percent in October,
still well above the national rate of 7.9 percent. Personal income of state residents continued to show more marked strength than
employment. In the first half of 2012 personal income grew at an annual rate of 7.2 percent in the first quarter and 3.1 percent in
the second quarter. The level of personal income has set a new record high in each of the last six quarters.



The economic outlook for the nation remains uncertain, with continuing questions about the near-term and longer-term
outlooks for federal tax and spending policy. The possibility of fiscal consolidation—a combination of tax reforms and/or
increases and spending cuts—raises risks of some reduction in the near-term growth of demand, though such a policy may
improve the longer-term prospects for the national economy and in so doing will improve the attractiveness of the United States
as a place to invest and expand business. The implementation of the Affordable Care Act and the changes in financial regulation
and supervision sanctioned by the Dodd-Frank Act adds to the near-term uncertainty, though it is now highly unlikely that either
statute will be repealed or substantially modified. Limited revenue growth has continued to put downward pressure on public
sector spending and employment by states and municipalities. Europe has slipped into recession, which will work to reduce
foreign demand for U.S. products while increasing competition for U.S. producers. At the same time, consumer confidence
appears to be higher, spending on big-ticket items such as automobiles has strengthened, and there are signs that homebuilding
and sales are reviving and housing prices are stabilizing or moving up. The same national forces are apparent in New Jersey. In
our case, the aftermath of Superstorm Sandy has raised some additional challenges for the State; some areas of the State, most
notably shore communities and businesses, will continue to cope with losses of infrastructure, though there will also be some
stimulus to activity as the rebuilding process goes forward. Looking forward, it is likely that the national expansion will continue
at a pace comparable to that seen in recent years, with moderate gains in employment and some ongoing reduction in the
unemployment rate. Recent actions and announcements by the Federal Reserve indicate further commitments to keep interest
rates exceptionally low for a prolonged time; this policy will likely be retained even if there is a change in Federal Reserve
leadership in early 2014.

The prospects are that New Jersey’s housing sector will improve. Through September, housing permits were on a path to
show a substantial increase from 2011, though the dislocations resulting from Superstorm Sandy creates a great deal of near-term
uncertainty in this area. Home resales also showed considerable gains in the first half of 2012. It is likely that these trends will
continue, with the possibility that the aftermath of the storm will provide some additional impetus to this sector. Motor vehicle
sales continue to recover, with purchases of new vehicles through September more than 7.0 percent higher than in the same
period of 2011.

For 2012 as a whole, New Jersey payroll employment is projected to average about 1.1 percent higher than in 2011 and
grow around 1.3 percent in 2013. The unemployment rate is expected to average 9.5 percent in 2012 and 9.1 percent in 2013.
Personal income is expected to grow around 3.2 percent in 2012 and 3.9 percent in 2013.

As unemployment stays high and capacity utilization remains low, underlying inflation is expected to be low and is not
likely to be a serious concern until after spending and employment growth move higher. Enhanced availability of credit,
continued improvement in financial market stability, and gains in consumer and business confidence continue to be critical
factors necessary for a more pronounced economic turnaround in the nation and in New Jersey.

BUDGET AND ACCOUNTING

Legal Level of Control

The State’s annual Appropriations Act includes the General Fund, as well as certain Special Revenue Funds (Casino
Control, Casino Revenue, Gubernatorial Elections, and Property Tax Relief). The departments maintain legal control at the
appropriation line item level and exercise budgetary control by individual appropriations and allocations within annual
appropriations to various programs and major expenditure objects. Program classifications represent a lower level operating
program function, consisting of closely related activities with identifiable objectives or goals. Revisions to the annual
Appropriations Act, reflecting program changes or interdepartmental transfers of an administrative nature, may be effected
during the budget year with certain Executive and Legislative Branch approvals. Language, located in the “General Provisions”
section of the State’s annual Appropriations Act, enables management to amend a department’s budget with approval by the
Director of the Office of Management and Budget; under specific conditions, additional approval by the Office of Legislative
Services is required. Only the State Legislature, however, may transfer appropriations between departments.




Accounting Systems

The Office of Management and Budget directs and supervises a central accounting system, which maintains all accounting
records for the various State departments. The State’s annual budget provides individual appropriations to departments for
specific programs and purposes, while component units maintain separate accounting systems.

To ensure expenditures do not exceed appropriations and allocations, the State employs encumbrance accounting. Purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments involving monetary expenditures are encumbrances. Any unencumbered and
unexpended non-continuing appropriations lapse at fiscal year’s end.

Consideration as to the adequacy of internal controls is paramount in developing and maintaining the State’s accounting
system. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against
loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and guarantee that financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements and
maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived from its use, and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires managerial estimates and
judgments. All internal control evaluations occur within this framework.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

The New Jersey State Constitution, which mandates an annual balanced budget, directs, in part, that no money shall be
drawn from the State Treasury but for appropriations made by law and that no law appropriating money for any State purpose
shall be enacted if the appropriations contained therein, together with all prior appropriations made for the same fiscal period,
shall exceed the total amount of the revenue on hand and anticipated to be available to meet such appropriations during such
fiscal period, as certified by the Governor. Accordingly, during the fiscal year, the State may have to make several revenue and
expenditure adjustments to ensure a positive fund balance. The State has had a balanced budget in every fiscal year since the
adoption of the State Constitution in 1947.

Created as a “rainy day fund,” the Surplus Revenue Fund is part of the General Fund’s resources and fund balance, and
accounts for excess revenues from prior fiscal years that are reserved legislatively and may be used to support current year’s
appropriations in the event that anticipated revenues in the General Fund are estimated to be less than those certified by the
Governor upon approval of the annual Appropriations Act. The Surplus Revenue Fund was designed to build fund balance
during economic upswings, and to be expended during economic downturns and emergency situations. Such an example
occurred during Fiscal Year 2009 when, in response to the national recession, the State drained its entire Surplus Revenue Fund
to help balance its budget. As of June 30, 2012, this Fund continued to have a zero balance.

The State employs a budgetary basis of accounting for all of its annual fiscal transactions. The budgetary basis differs from
the GAAP basis, which is used to present fund financial statements, in that the former: 1) recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures, 2) recognizes all federal revenues related to such encumbrances, and 3) reflects only current fiscal year
transactions. The GAAP basis also requires that certain grants and other financial assistance be recorded as revenues and/or
expenditures.

FINANCIAL TRENDS

Revenue History
Although State-budgeted Fiscal Year 2012 revenue collections of $29.1 billion were almost $3.5 billion less than those

collected in pre-recession Fiscal Year 2008, there was a measurable improvement of $426.8 million when compared to Fiscal
Year 2011 revenue collections. In comparison to Fiscal Year 2008, Gross Income Tax collections in Fiscal Year 2012 were
almost $1.5 billion less; however, they also showed a marked increase of $511.4 million in comparison to Fiscal Year 2011.
With the current Fiscal Year 2013 estimate projected to be $31.7 billion, the State’s economic recovery trend remains optimistic.
The Statistical Section provides a ten-year history of State-budgeted revenue collections.



Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Obligations

Pursuant to P.L. 2010, c.1, the State resumed making contributions to the pension plans on a phased-in basis over a seven-
year period beginning in Fiscal Year 2012. Previously, the State had not fully funded its various pension plans for several years,
and its post-retirement medical program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. This continued underfunding, coupled with the on-
going investment decline and increased number of retirees receiving distributions, has led to the State’s current net pension
obligation of $12.8 billion and a net OPEB obligation of $16.8 billion as of June 30, 2012. The total unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) for State and local pension plans was $41.7 billion as of June 30, 2011, or an increase of $5.4 billion from June
30, 2010. The increase in the UAAL is mainly attributable to expected actuarial losses including the investment return of 2.52%
being lower than the assumed rate of return of 7.95% and the state’s pension contribution of 1/7™ of the actuarially required
amount being less than the full actuarially required amount. This increase would have been larger except for the impact of P.L.
2011, c. 78 which suspended additional cost of living adjustment (COLA) increases for current and future retirees. The total
State and local OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability at June 30, 2011 was $60.1 billion, or a decrease of $11.3 billion from
the prior year. For updated information, Fiscal Year 2011 actuarial reports can be accessed via:
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/actuarial-rpts.shtml.

AUDIT INFORMATION

The principal auditor of the State’s reporting entity is the Office of the State Auditor, which resides in the Legislative
Branch of State government. The State Auditor’s examination was conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, and its opinion precedes the Basic Financial Statements. Private sector public accounting firms have been used for the
audits of separately issued component units and college and university financial statements. In addition, the Office of the State
Auditor conducts periodic financial and expanded scope audits of various State agencies.

Additional information regarding the State’s financial status, including prior year budgets, appropriations acts, and financial
reports, is available on the State’s web site (http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb/).

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

The GFOA awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of New Jersey for its
CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. In order to qualify for this certificate, a governmental entity must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, of which the contents conform to program
standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The State
of New Jersey has received this award every year since 1993.
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citizens to better understand and evaluate the State’s financial condition.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitics. the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the State of New Jersey as of and for the year ended June
30, 2012, which collectively comprise the state’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the State of New J ersey’s management.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units, the pensions and other
employee benefits trust funds, and the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey which represent
100 percent of the assets and deferred outflows and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units, 91 percent of the assets and 38 percent of the revenues (including additions to
fiduciary net assets) of the aggregate remaining fund information. and 100 percent of the information
disclosed in Note 2-D of the basic financial statements, respectively. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions,
insofar as they relate to the amounts and disclosures included for the discretely presented component
units. the pensions and other employee benefits trust funds, and the Port Authori ty of New York and
New Jersey, are based on the reports of the other auditors.



We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the pensions and other employee benefits
trust funds and three component units, the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority, the Atlantic
City Convention and Visitors Authority, and the Casino Reinvestment Development Authority, were
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
State of New Jersey’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evalualing the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred
to previously present fairly, in all material respects. the respective financial position of the
governmental activitics, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of New Jersey as
of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2-A, the State of New Jersey adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge
Accounting Termination Provisions as of July 1, 2011.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 9,
2013 on our consideration of the State of New Jersey’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis. the budgetary comparison schedules, and the funding
progress schedule for all pension trust funds and health benefits program fund be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information. although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and the other auditors have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of



management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State of New Jersey’s basic financial statements, The introductory section,
combining financial statements section, other information section, and the statistical section, listed in
the table of contents, are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used (o prepare the
basic financial statements. The combining financial statements section and the other information
section have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In
our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described previously. and the reports of
the other auditors, the combining financial statements section and the other information section are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and the statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on them.

‘“*““K:;E Eban

-f'/Slcphcn M. Eells
State Auditor
January 9, 2013



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following narrative provides an overview and analysis concerning New Jersey State Government’s financial performance of its
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Readers should consider this information in conjunction with the transmittal letter, which
precedes Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and the State’s financial statements, which follow.

Since July 1, 2002, the State has been accounting and reporting under the standards outlined in the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and
Local Governments. Therefore, a majority of the information provided is not easily comparable to reporting periods prior to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002. Year-to-year comparisons are provided in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Statistical Section. It
is the intent of GASB Statement No. 34 to provide meaningful comparisons that will further explain the State’s financial position and
results of its operations.

EFINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide

The primary government’s assets and deferred outflows total $36.0 billion, a decrease of $935.4 million from the prior fiscal
year. As of June 30, 2012, liabilities exceeded assets and deferred outflows by $40.6 billion. The State’s unrestricted net assets,
which represent net assets that have no statutory commitments and are available for discretionary use, totaled a negative $51.4
billion. The negative balance is primarily a result of under funding the annual pension costs to the State’s retirement systems and
the State’s recognition of other postemployment benefits under GASB Statement No. 45 — Accounting and Financial Reporting
by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (See Note 17 — Retirement Systems, Health Benefits, and Post-
Retirement Medical Benefits). Financing activities that have contributed to the State’s negative unrestricted net asset amount
include liabilities from pension bonds, the funding of a portion of local elementary and high school construction, and the
securitization of a major portion of annual tobacco master settlement agreement receipts with no corresponding assets.

June 30, 2012 component unit assets and deferred outflows exceeded component unit liabilities and deferred inflows by $17.3
billion. Total component unit assets and deferred outflows grew to $46.3 billion, a $0.5 billion increase from the prior fiscal
year.

Fund Level

The State’s governmental funds reported June 30, 2012 combined ending fund balances of $6.9 billion, which is a decrease of
$1.4 billion when compared to the prior fiscal year. Fund balances are segregated into the following categories: nonspendable,
restricted, committed, and unassigned. The nonspendable fund balance classification ($20.4 million) includes amounts that are
legally required to remain intact. The restricted fund balance classification ($4.4 billion) is used when constraints have been
placed upon the use of resources through enabling legislation initiated by voter referendum, constitutional provisions, debt
covenants, or other external parties such as the federal government. The committed fund balance classification ($2.0 billion)
includes amounts that can only be used for purposes specified in enabling legislation with the consent of both the legislative and
executive branches. In contrast to the restricted fund balance classification, amounts in this category may be redeployed for other
purposes with appropriate due process. Finally, the unassigned fund balance ($425.4 million) represents the fund balance amount
that has not been restricted or committed to a specific purpose within the General Fund.

During the fiscal year, the proprietary funds’ net assets increased by $543.0 million resulting in net assets of negative $241.0
million as of June 30, 2012.

Long-term Debt

The State’s long-term debt obligations increased 9.3 percent to $71.1 billion, which includes a net increase in bonded debt of $0.7
billion. During the fiscal year, the State issued $3.4 billion in bonds. New money issuances represented $1.3 billion primarily for
transportation system improvements, while $2.1 billion represented five refunding transactions that provided the State with $156.9
million in net present value savings. During Fiscal Year 2012, the State paid $3.7 billion in debt service on its long-term
obligations.

Non-bonded portions of the State’s long-term debt total $32.3 billion. This amount represents a $5.3 billion increase from the
prior fiscal year and is mainly attributable to increases in Net Pension Obligation (NPO) as well as the State’s Net Other
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Obligation.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The State’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund

financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements.

supplementary information (RSI) and other information, in addition to the basic financial statements.

Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report also contains required

Features

Government-wide
Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Scope

Entire State government
(except fiduciary funds)
and the State's component
units

State activities that are
not proprietary or
fiduciary

State activities that are
operated similar to a
private business

Instances in which the
State is the trustee or
agent for someone else's
resources

Required
Financial
Statements

OStatement of Net Assets
OStatement of Activities

OBalance Sheet
oStatement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance

OStatement of Net Assets

OStatement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes
in Net Assets

OStatement of Cash Flows

OStatement of Fiduciary

OStatement of Changes

Net Assets

in Fiduciary Net Assets

Accounting
Basis and
Measurement
Focus

Accrual accounting
and economic resources
focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial resources
focus

Accrual accounting
and economic resources
focus

Accrual accounting
and economic resources
focus

Types of
Asset/Liability
Information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term

Only assets expected to
be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter;
no capital assets included

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term

All assets and liabilities,
both short-term and
long-term

Types of
Inflow/Outflow
Information

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid

ORevenues for which
cash is received
during or soon after the
end of the fiscal year
OExpenditures when goods
or services have been
received and payment is

due during the year or soon

thereafter

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the State’s operations in a manner similar to private sector business
standards, as well as both short-term and long-term information regarding the State’s overall financial position through the fiscal year end.

The government-wide financial statements include the following two statements:

e  Statement of Net Assets Presents all of the State’s assets and liabilities and calculates net assets.

Increases or decreases in the

State’s net assets over time may serve as a useful indicator as to whether or not the State’s overall financial position is improving
or deteriorating.

e  Statement of Activities Presents how the State’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported
when the underlying event occurs, giving rise to the change, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. This statement also
presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each State function.
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Both the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities have separate sections that report three activities:

e Governmental Activities The majority of State service functions fall into this category, which includes Executive,
Legislative, and Judicial Branch operations. Governmental activity functions rely heavily on State taxes and federal grant
receipts for funding their respective programs and functions.

e Business-type Activities Certain State operations are legislatively able to charge fees to external users to recover all or a
portion of the cost of the services provided and are, therefore, classified as business-type activities. The State Lottery Fund
and the Unemployment Compensation Fund are two such examples.

e Component Units Legally separate operations and organizations for which the State has financial accountability are
considered component units. Operating as business-type activities, financial statements of component units are presented
discretely in either the major or non-major categories in both the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
based upon the relative size of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses in relation to the total. The State’s component units
currently consist of twelve senior public institutions of higher education as well as 21 authorities; of the latter 21, five (the
Garden State Preservation Trust, the New Jersey Building Authority, the New Jersey Schools Development Authority, the
New Jersey Transportation Trust Fund Authority, and the Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation) are blended into
governmental activities. A complete list of the State’s component units is shown in Note 1B — Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies — Financial Reporting Entity and Note 18 — Component Units. Audit reports of the individual
component units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices.

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Governmental Funds Financial Statements

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes two schedules that reconcile the amount reported on the governmental funds
financial statements (modified accrual basis of accounting) with government-wide financial statements (accrual basis of accounting). The
following summarizes the major differences between the financial reporting impacts of transitioning from a modified accrual basis of
accounting to a full accrual basis of accounting:

e  Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported on governmental funds financial statements.

e  Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide financial statements, but is reported as expenditures on
the governmental funds financial statements.

e Bond and note proceeds result in liabilities on the government-wide financial statements, but are recorded as other financing
sources on the governmental funds financial statements.

e  Certain other outflows represent either increases or decreases in liabilities on the government-wide financial statements, but are
reported as expenditures of the governmental funds financial statements.

For more detailed information, which is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide financial
statements and governmental funds financial statements, see “Notes to the Financial Statements.”

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and other financial resources together with
all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which is segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific
activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The State’s fund financial
statements reflect financial reporting practices in accordance with this definition. The State’s funds, which exclude component units, are
divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

e Governmental Funds Financial Statements Most direct state services are financed through governmental funds, which are
used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The governmental funds financial statements focus on current inflows and outflows of expendable resources and the
unexpended balances at the end of a fiscal year that are available for future spending. Governmental fund information helps
determine whether or not there was an addition or a reduction in financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
State programs.

The State’s governmental funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds. These funds are
reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found immediately following the government-wide
financial statements.

e Proprietary Funds Financial Statements Proprietary funds are used to account for State business-type activities. Since these
funds charge fees to external users, they are known as enterprise funds. Proprietary funds provide the same information as
government-wide financial statements and use the accrual basis of accounting.

e Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements Fiduciary funds, which include State pension fund systems, are used to account for
resources held by the State for the benefit of parties outside of State government. Fiduciary funds are reported using the accrual
basis of accounting in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. Government-wide
financial statements exclude fiduciary fund activity and balances since the assets are legislatively restricted in purpose and do not
represent discretionary assets the State can use to fund its operations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional background information that assists the reader in understanding the data

provided in the government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a required supplementary information section. This section includes budgetary
schedules that reconcile the statutory intent of the program with fund balances in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
at fiscal year end as well as variances between the final budget and actual results on a budgetary basis. Also, there is a Schedule of
Funding Progress for all Pension Trust Funds and Health Benefits Program Fund.

Combining Financial Statements
Combining financial statements are presented for the non-major governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Non-major funds are
shown in the aggregate in the basic financial statements.

Other Information

Information on New Jersey’s capital assets, long-term obligations, and non-major budgetary comparison schedules are displayed in
this section. Schedules of Anticipated and Appropriated Revenues provide detailed information on major and miscellaneous taxes, fees,
and other revenues. The Schedule of Anticipated Revenue provides further analysis by showing dollar and percentage variances of actual
collections as compared to the original anticipation. The Schedule of Appropriations and Expenditures details the comparison of
expenditures at the legal level of control to the final budget.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Assets

The State ended Fiscal Year 2012 with combined net assets for the primary government totaling a negative $40.6 billion. This amount
represents a reduction of net assets of $6.4 billion from the prior fiscal year. Restricted net assets include funds used to pay unemployment
claims and open space preservation. Capital assets, net of depreciation, are used by the State to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, includes land, land improvements,
buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure (roads, bridges, and other immovable assets), and construction in
progress. The deficit in unrestricted governmental net assets arose primarily as a result of the cost of the State’s school facilities
construction program, depreciation expense related to capital assets, and certain liabilities, including but not limited to the Net Pension
Obligation and the Net OPEB Obligation, that are required to be included in the government-wide financial statements.

Net Assets
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(Expressed in Millions)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current and other
noncurrent assets $ 10889.0 $ 125749 $ 15187 $ 15342 $ 12,4077 $ 14,109.1
Capital assets, net 23,567.0 22,799.8 - - 23,567.0 22,799.8
Total Assets 34,456.0 35,374.7 1,518.7 1,534.2 35,974.7 36,908.9
Deferred outflows 23.7 24.9 - - 23.7 249
Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows 34,479.7 35,399.6 1,518.7 1,534.2 35,998.4 36,933.8
Current liabilities 5,898.4 5,255.5 400.7 434.7 6,299.1 5,690.2
Noncurrent liabilities 68,987.2 63,564.3 1,359.0 1,883.5 70,346.2 65,447.8
Total Liabilities 74,885.6 68,819.8 1,759.7 2,318.2 76,645.3 71,138.0
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 7,192.2 6,999.7 - - 7,192.2 6,999.7
Restricted 3,536.3 3,877.3 12.1 10.9 3,548.4 3,888.2
Unrestricted (51,134.4) (44,297.2) (253.1) (794.9) (51,387.5) (45,092.1)

©

Total Net Assets (40,405.9) $ (33420.2) $ (241.0) $ (784.0) $ (40,646.9) $ (34,204.2)
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Changes in Net Assets

The State’s Fiscal Year 2012 net assets decreased by $6.4 billion. Approximately 48.7 percent of the State’s total revenues came from
general taxes, while 30.2 percent was derived from operating grants. Charges for services amounted to 19.4 percent of total revenues,
while other items such as capital grants, interest earnings, and miscellaneous revenues accounted for the remainder. State expenses cover a
range of services. The largest expense, 24.9 percent, was for educational, cultural, and intellectual development, which includes
approximately $186.8 million disbursed by the New Jersey Schools Development Authority (a blended component unit) to help finance
school facilities construction. Physical and mental health amounted to 19.3 percent of total expenses, while government direction,
management and control amounted to 18.8 percent. Other major expenditures focused on economic planning, development, and security;
public safety and criminal justice; and unemployment compensation. During Fiscal Year 2012, governmental activity expenses exceeded
program revenues; this imbalance was mainly funded through $28.2 billion of general revenues (mostly taxes and transfers). The
remaining $7.0 billion resulted in a decrease in net assets. Offsetting the governmental net asset decrease, Business-type Activities

reflected a net asset increase of $543.0 million as the Unemployment Compensation Fund’s available resources exceeded the need to pay
claims.

Statement of Activities
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(Expressed in Millions)

Governmental Business-type Primary Government
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services $ 48209 $ 4,736.1 $ 58528 $ 54571 $ 10,6737 $ 10,1932

Operating grants 13,238.6 13,326.1 3,309.1 4,408.5 16,547.7 17,734.6

Capital grants 325.8 139.6 - - 325.8 139.6
General revenues

General taxes 26,666.3 26,569.4 - - 26,666.3 26,569.4

Interest earnings (274.9) 48.9 (0.9) - (275.8) 48.9

Miscellaneous 851.2 762.0 - - 851.2 762.0

Total Revenues 45,627.9 45,582.1 9,161.0 9,865.6 54,788.9 55,447.7
Expenses

Public safety and criminal justice 3,274.0 3,169.3 - - 3,274.0 3,169.3
Physical and mental health 11,794.4 11,3924 - - 11,7944 11,392.4
Educational, cultural, and

intellectual development 15,2495 14,091.6 - - 15,249.5 14,091.6
Community development and

environmental management 1,560.6 1,694.1 - - 1,560.6 1,694.1
Economic planning,

development, and security 6,861.9 6,729.5 - - 6,861.9 6,729.5
Transportation programs 1,715.9 1,927.5 - - 1,715.9 1,927.5
Government direction,

management, and control 11,4895 11,671.6 - - 11,489.5 11,671.6
Special government services 342.1 348.9 - - 342.1 348.9
Interest expense 1,275.8 1,227.7 - - 1,275.8 1,227.7
State Lottery Fund - - 1,845.6 1,724.3 1,845.6 1,724.3
Unemployment Compensation Fund - - 5,822.3 7,206.6 5,822.3 7,206.6

Total Expenses 53,563.7 52,252.6 7,667.9 8,930.9 61,231.6 61,183.5

Excess (Deficiency) Before Transfers (7,935.8) (6,670.5) 1,493.1 934.7 (6,442.7) (5,735.8)
Transfers 950.1 1,451.5 (950.1) (952.3) - 499.2

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (6,985.7) (5,219.0) 543.0 (17.6) (6,442.7) (5,236.6)
Net Assets - July 1 (33,420.2) (28,201.2) (784.0) (766.4) (34,204.2) (28,967.6)
Net Assets - June 30 $ (40,4059) $ (33,420.2) $ (241.0) $ (784.0) $ (40,646.9) $ (34,204.2)
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Primary Government — Fiscal Year 2012 Revenues and Expenses

During Fiscal Year 2012, State revenues, including transfers, totaled $54.8 billion or a decrease of $1.1 billion when compared to the
prior fiscal year. This decrease in total revenues is primarily attributable to an overall decrease in operating grants and contributions.
General taxes totaled $26.7 billion and accounted for 48.7 percent of total State revenues for Fiscal Year 2012. The State’s Gross Income
Tax totaled $11.1 billion, the Sales and Use Tax totaled $8.1 billion, and the Corporation Business Tax totaled $2.0 billion. The State’s
three major taxes comprised 79.7 percent of the total general taxes that were collected during Fiscal Year 2012. The State’s economy
showed a slight improvement, as indicated by the $96.9 million increase in general taxes when compared to Fiscal Year 2011.

Fiscal Year 2012 expenses totaled $61.2 billion, for an increase of $48.1 million in comparison to the prior fiscal year. State spending
increased by $1.2 billion in educational, cultural, and intellectual development, $402.0 million in physical and mental health, and $132.4
million in economic planning, development, and security, which were offset by decreases of $1.4 billion in unemployment compensation,
$211.6 million in transportation programs, and $182.1 million in government direction, management, and control.

The following pie charts depict primary government activities for revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012:

Revenues — Primary Government
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Capital grants, 0.1% General taxes, 48.7%

Operating grants,
30.2%

Miscellaneous and Charges for services,
transfers, 1.6% 19.4%
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Expenses — Primary Government
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Govemnment direction, State Lottery Fund,

management, and 3.0%
control, 18.8% Unemployment
Compensation Fund,
9.5%
_ _ Public safety and
Economic planning, criminal justice, 5.3%
development, and
security, 11.2% \

Transportation
programs, 2.8%

i Physical and mental
Community
development and health, 19.3%
environmental

management, 2.5%

Special govermment

services, 0.6% Educational, cultural,
and intellectual
development, 24.9%

Interest expense, 2.1%

Please see the Statistical Section for current and prior fiscal year revenue and expense comparisons.

Component Units
Combined operating revenues and expenses for the State’s component units for Fiscal Year 2012 amounted to $10.5 billion and $11.7

billion, respectively. Total operations along with other revenue and expenses contributed to total combined net assets at fiscal year end of
$17.3 billion. The component units received $1.1 billion in State appropriations during Fiscal Year 2012.

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The focus of the State’s governmental funds reported in the fund financial statements is on near term inflows, outflows, and balance of
expendable resources, which are essential elements in assessing the State’s financing needs and serve as useful measures of the
government’s net resources available for future spending. The State’s governmental funds reported June 30, 2012 fund balances of $6.9
billion. The $1.4 billion decrease in fund balance was primarily from lower Fiscal Year 2012 revenues.

General Fund
The General Fund is the State’s chief operating fund and is the fund into which all State revenues, not otherwise restricted by statute,
are deposited. The General Fund’s ending fund balance totaled $2.9 billion, of which $425.4 million represented unassigned fund balance.

On a budgetary basis, general revenues of $28.8 billion were $3.8 billion lower than the final budget. The negative variance was
primarily the result of unearned federal and other grant revenues of $1.6 billion, declines of $1.1 billion in other revenues, and $990.7
million in taxes. Federal and other grant revenues are not earned unless there has been a grant award and eligible grant expenses incurred.
To the extent that federal and grant appropriations are made in anticipation of grant awards and the incurrence of grant expenditures, grant
revenues are budgeted.

Total expenditures were $3.4 billion lower than original appropriations as set forth in the annual Appropriations Act plus supplemental
appropriations enacted during the fiscal year. A major cause for under-spending resulted from the overestimate of federal funds; this
practice allows the State to receive the maximum federal dollars that become available. During Fiscal Year 2012, the State’s appropriation
of federal funds and other grants exceeded expenditures by $1.6 billion; these excess appropriations are available for use in future years.
From a Fiscal Year 2012 program perspective, under-spending transpired in physical and mental health ($874.9 million); public safety and
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criminal justice ($658.7 million); community development and environmental management ($628.3 million); economic planning,
development, and security ($562.4 million); government direction, management, and control ($264.9 million); educational, cultural, and
intellectual development ($176.4 million); special government services ($110.1 million); and transportation programs ($82.9 million).

Property Tax Relief Fund

The Property Tax Relief Fund accounts for revenues from the Gross Income Tax and one-half percent of the Sales and Use Tax that is
constitutionally dedicated for property tax relief. Appropriations from this fund must be used exclusively for the constitutional purpose of
reducing or offsetting property taxes. During Fiscal Year 2012, $12.2 billion of property tax relief expenditures were made. The Property
Tax Relief Fund’s Fiscal Year 2012 ending fund balance was $6.0 million.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

State Lottery Fund

Monies derived from the sale of State lottery tickets are deposited into this fund. Disbursements are authorized for the payment of
prizes to holders of winning lottery tickets, vendor fees in the production and distribution of lottery tickets, and for the administrative
expenses of the Division of the State Lottery. Available fund balances are transferred to the State’s General Fund in support of the amounts
annually appropriated for State institutions and for education. The present value of obligations for future installment payments of lottery
prizes, which are funded by the purchase of deposit fund contracts and United States Government Treasury securities, are accounted for in
this fund.

In Fiscal Year 2012, gross revenues totaled $2.8 hillion, of which $1.6 billion was returned in prizes, $950.1 million went to state
education and institutions, $227.9 million was paid to sales agents and ticket vendors, and $36.8 million covered Lottery operational and
promotional expenses. As of June 30, 2012, the State Lottery, since its inception, has generated over $55.0 billion in gross revenues, $29.5
billion in prizes, and contributed $21.0 billion to the State.

Unemployment Compensation Fund

The Unemployment Compensation Fund accounts for monies deposited from employers’ and employees’ contributions for
unemployment compensation, amounts credited or advances made by the federal government, and amounts received from any other source.
After consideration is given to any claim for refund of overpayment of contributions, the Division of Employment Security transfers the
remainder to the Treasurer of the United States for credit to the State of New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Fund.

The economic difficulties experienced by the State of New Jersey and the nation have impacted claims against, and the funding of, the
State’s Unemployment Compensation Fund. Under State law, the rates for employers are subject to automatic annual adjustment, as
necessary, to maintain the Fund’s sufficiency. The Fund operates independently and its obligations are not payable from the State’s
General Fund. To provide for sufficient cash flow to fund unemployment claims, commencing on March 2009, the State, under federal
law, applied to the United States Department of Labor for cash advances. As of November 30, 2012, $750.5 million of such advances are
outstanding. Until the economic conditions in the State improve, the use of such advances is likely to continue.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
New Jersey’s Office of Management and Budget, under the purview of the Department of the Treasury, is responsible for recording all

capital assets in the State’s capital asset system. In addition to New Jersey’s Department of Transportation identifying significant
requirements for bridge repair and maintenance, the New Jersey Commission on Capital Budgeting and Planning has identified a
significant amount of capital investment requirements for State facilities. The State’s annual budget and planning process prioritizes these
requirements and recommends funding, as can be accommodated within available resources. Over the last few years, New Jersey has faced
large budget deficits and resources have been scarce.

The Fiscal Year 2012 capital appropriation included $2.9 billion of State and matching federal funds for both the Department of
Transportation and the New Jersey Transit Corporation. The State’s share, funded through the New Jersey Transportation Trust Fund
Authority, produced $435.0 million for State highway infrastructure, $190.0 million for local highways, and $622.0 million for mass
transit. During Fiscal Year 2012, the New Jersey Economic Development Authority did not issue any School Facilities Construction
Bonds to help fund the New Jersey Schools Development Authority’s program; accordingly, as of June 30, 2012, a total of $8.6 billion of
the $12.5 billion school facilities construction bond program has been issued. The constitutional dedication of 4.0 percent of the
Corporation Business Tax was appropriated to fund hazardous discharge cleanup, underground storage tank improvements, and surface
water quality projects.

Capital asset data is shown below. The State’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $23.6 billion as of
June 30, 2012. Depreciation expense charges for Fiscal Year 2012 totaled $814.3 million.
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Land and Easements
Land Improvements
Buildings and Improvements

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

As of June 30

(Expressed in Millions)

Total Primary Government

Machinery, Equipment and Software
Infrastructure

Sub-Total

Construction-In-Progress

Total

Notes:

Funding for capital investment requirements is derived either from the State’s operating budget or from legislative-approved or voter-approved

bonded debt.

2012 2011

$ 48243 $ 4,765.1
82.2 85.9

1,566.9 1,591.1

397.1 412.6

14,102.2 12,057.4
20,9727 189121
2,594.3 3,887.7

$ 235670  $ 22,799.8

For more detailed information about the State’s capital assets, see Note 7 — Capital Assets.

Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2012, New Jersey’s outstanding long-term obligations for governmental activities totaled $71.1 billion, a $6.0 billion
increase over the prior fiscal year. Of the $6.0 billion increase, $5.3 billion is attributable to increases in the Net Pension Obligation and
Net OPEB Obligation. Long-term bonded debt obligations totaled $38.8 billion, while other long-term obligations totaled $32.3 billion. In
addition, the State has $9.5 billion of legislatively authorized bonding capacity that has not yet been issued. As of June 30, 2012, the
legislatively authorized but unissued debt increased by $2.2 billion (See Statistical Section — Legislatively Authorized But Unissued Debt,

2012 and 2011). The State’s long-term obligations for the past five fiscal years are shown below:

§75.0

Long-Term Obligations

(Expressed in Billions)

Fiscal Year 2008 to Fiscal Year 2012

$60.0

$45.0

$30.0

$150

$0.0

Note:

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

For more detailed information about the State’s long-term debt activity, see Note 10 — Long-Term Obligations.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

New Jersey’s economy has continued to recover. In each month through October 2012 payroll employment in New Jersey was higher
than in the same month of 2011. In an environment of moderate job growth and some gains in the labor force, the State unemployment rate
moved up to 9.9 percent in August before edging down to 9.7 percent in October, still well above the national rate of 7.9 percent. New
Jersey economic forecasts as of November 2012 from the Treasury Department’s Office of the Chief Economist, as well as from Global
Insight, Moody’s, and Rutgers University, all call for ongoing improvement in economic conditions through the end of 2013. However, it
is likely that the after-effects of Superstorm Sandy will add substantial short-term volatility to New Jersey’s economy, followed by some
added impetus to growth as the rebuilding process takes hold.

New Jersey’s economic outlook also hinges, critically, on the national economy. Resolution of current controversies about federal
taxes and spending and the maintenance of supportive monetary policies are critical to sustaining consumer and business confidence and
the recovery in national and state economies. Stability in both national and international financial markets are also key elements in
providing an environment for growth in the state.

The State and the nation may experience some near-term deterioration in growth and the expected pace of economic expansion may
decline if consumers, investors, and businesses are negatively affected by concerns regarding long term federal budget sustainability, the
impact of federal health care reform on business costs, lack of credit availability, U.S. and international financial market stresses, any
slowdown in the pace of global economic recovery, and geopolitical tensions, particularly those which lead to any substantial restrictions
on energy supplies from the Middle East. To a large extent, the future direction of the economy, nationally and in the State, hinges on the
assumptions regarding the strength of the current economic recovery, energy prices, and stability in the financial markets. Based on the
information available as of the date hereof, economic conditions in the State should improve over the next year, but the recovery remains
vulnerable.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is designed to provide a general overview of the
State of New Jersey’s finances to our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors, and to demonstrate the State’s accountability
for the money it receives and the stewardship over its resources. Requests concerning any of the data presented in this Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, or for additional information should be addressed to the State of New
Jersey, Office of Management and Budget, P.O. Box 221, 33 West State Street, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625. Historical copies of the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the State Budget, and the Appropriations Handbook are accessible via:
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb.
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles
Federal government
Departmental accounts
Loans
Mortgages
Other
Internal balances
Due from external parties
Inventories
Deferred charges
Other

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Investments
Receivables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles

Loans

Mortgages

Other
Pension assets
Capital assets - nondepreciated
Capital assets - depreciated, net
Derivative instrument asset
Other

Total Noncurrent Assets
Deferred Outflows

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Component Units
120,875,783 $ 3,105,731 123,981,514 $ 3,745,950,391
3,938,588,388 269,283,320 4,207,871,708 5,234,051,868
691,812,743 89,400,695 781,213,438 182,669,641
2,987,454,427 865,089,876 3,852,544,303 -
1,675,318,169 - 1,675,318,169 269,269,082
- - - 98,075,000
805,917,205 81,291,854 887,209,059 744,554,407
109,711,045 (109,711,045) - -
9,604,905 - 9,604,905 155,523,345
- - - 153,076,425
- 14,453,490 14,453,490 -
323,805,084 - 323,805,084 221,476,077
10,663,087,749 1,212,913,921 11,876,001,670 10,804,646,236
- 305,775,771 305,775,771 5,460,981,310
- - - 3,787,501,833
- - - 2,567,486,208
- - - 120,578,131
5,935,136 - 5,935,136 -
7,418,569,647 - 7,418,569,647 5,518,540,752
16,148,480,937 - 16,148,480,937 17,391,503,917
- - - 16,574,020
219,989,772 - 219,989,772 416,381,887
23,792,975,492 305,775,771 24,098,751,263 35,279,548,058
23,660,386 - 23,660,386 203,393,690
34,479,723,627 1,518,689,692 35,998,413,319 46,287,587,984

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Component Units

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals 2,125,659,625 196,216,799 2,321,876,424 1,149,325,345
Due to external parties 48,178,274 - 48,178,274 241,918,983
Interest payable 283,343,259 - 283,343,259 312,436,572
Deferred revenue 276,448,981 - 276,448,981 298,313,817
Current portion of long-term liabilities 2,775,248,332 94,163,004 2,869,411,336 927,454,241
Other 389,533,196 110,346,244 499,879,440 546,173,188
Total Current Liabilities 5,898,411,667 400,726,047 6,299,137,714 3,475,622,146
Noncurrent Liabilities
Advance from federal government - 1,052,178,034 1,052,178,034 -
Net pension obligation 12,838,529,449 - 12,838,529,449 31,406,499
Net OPEB obligation 16,818,300,000 - 16,818,300,000 644,962,617
Pollution remediation obligation 92,174,562 - 92,174,562 51,087,150
Derivative instrument liability 672,613,876 - 672,613,876 262,589,013
Other 38,565,586,819 306,815,323 38,872,402,142 24,313,456,128
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 68,987,204,706 1,358,993,357 70,346,198,063 25,303,501,407
Deferred Inflows - - - 227,646,563

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 74,885,616,373 1,759,719,404 76,645,335,777 29,006,770,116
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 7,192,227,532 - 7,192,227,532 9,092,326,604
Restricted for:
Capital projects - - - 110,804,528
Public safety and criminal justice 152,570 - 152,570 -
Physical and mental health 2,297,637 - 2,297,637 -
Educational, cultural, and

intellectual development 466,445,451 - 466,445,451 -
Community development and

environmental management 2,689,857,245 - 2,689,857,245 -
Economic planning, development

and security 375,198,981 - 375,198,981 -
Transportation programs 2,374,581 - 2,374,581 -
Debt service - - - 1,051,510,615
Other - 12,083,292 12,083,292 4,837,223,860
Unrestricted (51,134,446,743) (253,113,004) (51,387,559,747) 2,188,952,261

Total Net Assets $ (40,405,892,746) $ (241,029,712) $  (40,646,922,458) $  17,280,817,868
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Functions - Programs

Primary Government

Governmental activities:

Public safety and criminal justice
Physical and mental health
Educational, cultural, and
intellectual development
Community development and
environmental management
Economic planning, development,
and security

Transportation programs
Government direction, management,
and control

Special government services
Interest expense

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:

State Lottery Fund

Unemployment Compensation Fund
Total business-type activities

Total Primary Government

Component Units
Authorities
Colleges and Universities

Total Component Units

General Revenues and Transfers
Taxes:

Gross Income Tax

Sales and Use Tax

Corporate Business Tax

Other taxes

Investment earnings

Payments from State
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - July 1, 2011 (Restated)
Net Assets - June 30, 2012

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Expenses

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Charges for
Services

Operating Grants
and Contributions

Capital Grants and
Contributions

$ 3,274,015158 $ 1,120,402,116 $ 399,903,731 $ 1,595,142
11,794,396,012 858,698,740 1,072,229,124 -
15,249,457,993 111,727,701 1,231,002,163 -

1,560,623,235 271,111,096 709,189,836 75,937,317
6,861,920,730 1,313,185,629 898,845,974 -
1,715,935,105 30,523,659 924,543,439 248,261,148
11,489,454,219 971,228,556 7,991,196,198 -
342,084,534 143,961,034 11,715,587 -
1,275,826,916 - - -
53,563,713,902 4,820,838,531 13,238,626,052 325,793,607
1,845,655,927 2,797,638,855 204,726 -
5,822,265,305 3,055,168,945 3,308,900,613 -
7,667,921,232 5,852,807,800 3,309,105,339 -

$ 61,231,635,134

$ 10,673,646,331

$ 16,547,731,391

$ 325,793,607

$ 5,843,791,283
5,853,967,500

$ 2,540,591,984
3,165,107,712

$ 1,427,039,267
2,056,876,072

$ 1,324,064,034
27,841,714

$ 11,697,758,783

$ 5,705,699,696

$  3,483,915,339

$ 1,351,905,748

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Component Units
$ (1,752,114,169) $ - 8 (1,752,114,169) $ -
(9,863,468,148) - (9,863,468,148) -
(13,906,728,129) - (13,906,728,129) -
(504,384,986) - (504,384,986) -
(4,649,889,127) - (4,649,889,127) -
(512,606,859) - (512,606,859) -
(2,527,029,465) - (2,527,029,465) -
(186,407,913) - (186,407,913) -
(1,275,826,916) - (1,275,826,916) -
(35,178,455,712) - (35,178,455,712) -
- 952,187,654 952,187,654 -
- 541,804,253 541,804,253 -
- 1,493,991,907 1,493,991,907 -
(35,178,455,712) 1,493,991,907 (33,684,463,805) -
- - - (196,991,811)
- - - 155,149,057
- - - (41,842,754)
11,128,418,349 - 11,128,418,349 -
8,080,130,928 - 8,080,130,928 -
2,037,103,743 - 2,037,103,743 -
5,420,657,071 - 5,420,657,071 -
(274,863,927) (885,793) (275,749,720) -
- - - 1,114,395,246
851,208,367 - 851,208,367 -
950,082,268 (950,082,268) - -
28,192,736,799 (950,968,061) 27,241,768,738 1,114,395,246
(6,985,718,913) 543,023,846 (6,442,695,067) (41,842,754)
(33,420,173,833) (784,053,558) (34,204,227,391) 17,322,660,622
$ (40,405,892,746) $ (241,029,712) $ (40,646,922,458) $ 17,280,817,868
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Non-Major Total
Property Tax Governmental Governmental
General Fund Relief Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 55,245,368 $ - $ 65,630,415 $ 120,875,783
Investments 1,204,543,259 - 2,734,045,129 3,938,588,388
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Federal government 458,583,519 - 100,183,528 558,767,047
Departmental accounts 1,985,912,853 535,627,253 465,914,321 2,987,454,427
Loans 380,033,966 - 1,295,284,203 1,675,318,169
Other 174,704,971 - 223,023,720 397,728,691
Due from other funds 841,097,664 11,197,067 364,583,816 1,216,878,547
Other 4,986,001 - 6,198,444 11,184,445
Total Assets 5,105,107,601 546,824,320 $ 5,254,863,576 $ 10,906,795,497
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals 1,500,549,489 48,564,993 $ 576,545,143 $ 2,125,659,625
Deferred revenue 269,582,724 - 122,396,257 391,978,981
Due to other funds 233,759,535 349,301,368 562,679,968 1,145,740,871
Other 200,483,708 143,000,714 46,048,774 389,533,196
Total Liabilities 2,204,375,456 540,867,075 1,307,670,142 4,052,912,673
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 20,416,073 - - 20,416,073
Restricted 884,257,776 - 3,494,595,906 4,378,853,682
Committed 1,570,702,994 5,957,245 452,597,528 2,029,257,767
Unassigned 425,355,302 - - 425,355,302
Total Fund Balances 2,900,732,145 5,957,245 3,947,193,434 6,853,882,824
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,105,107,601 546,824,320 $ 5,254,863,576 $ 10,906,795,497

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2012

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different as a result of the following items:

Some of the State's revenues will be collected after year-end, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore
are deferred in the funds.

In the government-wide statements deferred issuance costs are capitalized and
amortized over a period of years, but are reported as expenditures in the fund
perspective.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the fund perspective. These assets consist of :
Infrastructure assets
Buildings and improvements
Land and land improvements
Other capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

Deferred tobacco settlement revenue recorded in the fund perspective is
recognized as revenue and not deferred in the statement of net assets.

Deferred outflows are not current resources and therefore are not reported in the
fund perspective.

The pension and other assets are not current resources and therefore are not
reported in the fund perspective.

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the fund perspective. Those liabilities consist of:
Current Liabilities
Accrued interest
Current portion of long-term obligations

Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds and notes payable
Installment obligations
Loans payable
Capital leases
Compensated absences
Unamortized deferral on refunding bonds
Unamortized premium
Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation Bonds
Unamortized discount on Capital Appreciation Bonds
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation
Pollution remediation obligation
Derivative instrument liability

Net assets of governmental activities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$ 6,853,882,824

541,234,210

312,620,639
22,311,960,151
3,411,076,332
5,046,986,894
3,567,743,645

(10,770,716,438) 23,567,050,584

115,530,000

23,660,386

225,924,908
(283,343,259)

(2,775,248,332) (3,058,591,591)
(22,271,915,001)
(17,153,001,876)
(1,279,358,087)
(502,842,502)
(274,181,248)
994,775,062
(1,518,506,080)
(4,424,327 ,441)
7,863,770,354
(12,838,529,449)
(16,818,300,000)
(92,174,562)

(672,613,876) (68,987,204,706)

$  (40,405,892,746)




STATE OF NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

General Fund

Property Tax
Relief Fund

Non-Major
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

REVENUES
Taxes $ 13,322,342,618 $ 11,751,670,559 $ 1,563,804,021 $ 26,637,817,198
Federal and other grants 11,426,543,840 - 899,043,782 12,325,587,622
Licenses and fees 1,168,023,182 - 106,240,408 1,274,263,590
Services and assessments 1,617,823,551 - 1,242,959,897 2,860,783,448
Investment earnings 11,749,692 - 8,740,159 20,489,851
Contributions 1,140 - 79,135 80,275
Other 2,775,135,360 - 532,860,226 3,307,995,586
Total Revenues 30,321,619,383 11,751,670,559 4,353,727,628 46,427,017,570
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety and criminal justice 3,253,200,559 - 107,539,960 3,360,740,519
Physical and mental health 11,394,035,518 130,584,126 283,139,982 11,807,759,626
Educational, cultural, and intellectual development 4,459,445,345 10,820,331,293 219,301,069 15,499,077,707
Community development and environmental management 1,301,588,529 248,077,470 137,445,697 1,687,111,696
Economic planning, development, and security 5,547,246,713 29,678,000 1,340,638,439 6,917,563,152
Transportation programs 516,392,408 - 1,949,837,796 2,466,230,204
Government direction, management, and control 5,453,092,689 948,011,001 221,834,014 6,622,937,704
Special government services 340,382,154 - 169,518 340,551,672
Capital Outlay 122,514,647 - - 122,514,647
Debt Service:
Principal 182,230,000 - 398,244,311 580,474,311
Interest 95,132,261 - 825,519,418 920,651,679
Total Expenditures 32,665,260,823 12,176,681,890 5,483,670,204 50,325,612,917
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (2,343,641,440) (425,011,331) (1,129,942,576) (3,898,595,347)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of debt - - 1,315,000,000 1,315,000,000
Transfers from other funds 2,473,321,153 - 2,311,472,254 4,784,793,407
Transfers to other funds (1,113,035,206) - (2,721,667,085) (3,834,702,291)
Other sources 1,841,499,189 - 447,649,309 2,289,148,498
Other uses (1,718,877,171) - (395,657,456) (2,114,534,627)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,482,907,965 - 956,797,022 2,439,704,987
Net Change in Fund Balance (860,733,475) (425,011,331) (173,145,554) (1,458,890,360)
Fund Balances - July 1, 2011 (Restated) 3,761,465,620 430,968,576 4,120,338,988 8,312,773,184
Fund Balances - June 30, 2012 $ 2,900,732,145 $ 5,957,245 $ 3,947,193434 $ 6,853,882,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different as
a result of the following items:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their useful lives as
depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds. However,
issuing debt increases long-term obligations in the statement of net assets. In the current
period, proceeds were received from revenue and general obligation bonds.

Some capital additions were financed through capital leases, certificates of participation
and installment obligations. In the governmental funds these arrangements are considered
a source of financing, but in the statement of net assets, these arrangements are reported as
an obligation.

The changes in fair value related to nonqualifying swap agreements are not considered
current resources and are only reported in the statement of activities.

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term obligations in the statement of net assets. In the current year,
these amounts consist of:

Bond principal retirement

Capital lease payments

Installment obligation retirement

Certificates of participation retirement

Tobacco Settlement Financing Corp. bond retirement

Total long-term obligations repayment

Some revenues will not be collected for several months after the fiscal year ends, they are
not considered "available" revenues and are not accrued in the governmental funds. The
Fiscal Year 2012 receivable balances increased by this amount.

Some revenues recorded in the statement of activities do not provide current financial
resources and therefore are deferred in the fund perspective.

In the government-wide statements certain items are capitalized and amortized over a
period of years, but are reported as expenditures or other financing sources and uses in the
fund perspective. These activities consist of:

Decrease in unamortized premiums

Decrease in deferral on refunding issues

Increase in deferred issuance costs

Decrease in bond discount

Total capitalized and amortized items

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are reported as expenditures or reductions of revenue in
governmental funds. These activities consist of:

Net increase in accrued interest

Decrease in compensated absences, medicaid, and other

Decrease in pension assets

Increase in net pension and OPEB obligations

Increase in pollution remediation obligation

Increase in other assets

Total additional expenditures and revenue reductions

Change in net assets of governmental activities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1,507,885,311
(740,617,901)

570,595,000
66,741,932
417,418,779
23,508,771
25,820,000

93,767,032
(163,756,318)
(23,185,103)
(879,685)

(337,235,308)
36,376,819
(515,016)
(5,298,110,079)
(11,774,096)
3,109,656

$

$

(1,458,890,360)

767,267,410

(1,315,000,000)

(122,514,647)

(287,363,282)

1,104,084,482

62,609,582

(33,710,000)

(94,054,074)

(5,608,148,024)

(6,985,718,913)



STATE OF NEW JERSEY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Federal government

Departmental accounts

Other

Due from other funds

Deferred charges

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals

Due to other funds

Current portion of long-term obligations
Other

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Advance from federal government
Due in more than one year

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Restricted for:
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

State Unemployment Total
Lottery Compensation Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds
$ 2,650,488 455,243 3,105,731
269,182,306 101,014 269,283,320
- 89,400,695 89,400,695
- 865,089,876 865,089,876
11,526,442 69,765,412 81,291,854
- 17,882,840 17,882,840
13,912,288 541,202 14,453,490
297,271,524 1,043,236,282 1,340,507,806
305,775,771 - 305,775,771
603,047,295 1,043,236,282 1,646,283,577
82,250,918 113,965,881 196,216,799
107,734,758 19,859,127 127,593,885
94,163,004 - 94,163,004
- 110,346,244 110,346,244
284,148,680 244,171,252 528,319,932
- 1,052,178,034 1,052,178,034
306,815,323 - 306,815,323
306,815,323 1,052,178,034 1,358,993,357
590,964,003 1,296,349,286 1,887,313,289
12,083,292 - 12,083,292
- (253,113,004) (253,113,004)
$ 12,083,292 (253,113,004) (241,029,712)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and charges for services
Assessments

From federal agencies

Other

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Unemployment compensation
Lottery prize awards

Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income
Other

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers to other funds

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - July 1, 2011
Net Assets - June 30, 2012

State Unemployment Total
Lottery Compensation Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds
$  2,758,899,785 - 3 2,758,899,785
- 2,980,147,356 2,980,147,356
- 3,308,900,613 3,308,900,613
38,739,070 440,254 39,179,324
2,797,638,855 6,289,488,223 9,087,127,078
- 5,822,265,305 5,822,265,305
1,617,771,751 - 1,617,771,751
227,884,176 - 227,884,176
1,845,655,927 5,822,265,305 7,667,921,232
951,982,928 467,222,918 1,419,205,846
(681,067) - (681,067)
- 74,581,335 74,581,335
(681,067) 74,581,335 73,900,268
951,301,861 541,804,253 1,493,106,114
(950,082,268) - (950,082,268)
1,219,593 541,804,253 543,023,846
10,863,699 (794,917,257) (784,053,558)
$ 12,083,292 (253,113,004) $ (241,029,712)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

State Unemployment Total
Lottery Compensation Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts received from customers $ 1,385,166,786 $ - 1,385,166,786
Receipts from federal and local agencies - 3,534,998,725 3,534,998,725
Receipts from assessments - 2,742,830,405 2,742,830,405
Payments to suppliers (38,758,860) - (38,758,860)
Payments to prize winners (412,972,456) - (412,972,456)
Claims paid - (5,781,986,902) (5,781,986,902)
Other receipts (payments) 44,212,824 - 44,212,824
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 977,648,294 495,842,228 1,473,490,522
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan from (payment to) federal government - (494,878,435) (494,878,435)
Transfers to other funds (953,000,111) - (953,000,111)
Other - (747,865) (747,865)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (953,000,111) (495,626,300) (1,448,626,411)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 1,215,541,000 - 1,215,541,000
Purchase of investments (1,238,140,000) - (1,238,140,000)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (22,599,000) - (22,599,000)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,049,183 215,928 2,265,111
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1, 2011 601,305 239,315 840,620
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2012 $ 2,650,488 $ 455,243 3,105,731
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 951,982,928 $ 467,222,918 1,419,205,846
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Net changes in assets and liabilities:
Current assets 31,122,650 20,965,284 52,087,934
Noncurrent assets 29,654,840 - 29,654,840
Current liabilities 10,667,182 7,654,026 18,321,208
Noncurrent liabilities (45,779,306) - (45,779,306)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 977,648,294 $ 495,842,228 $  1,473,490,522

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Agency Investment
Funds Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,054,786 515
Securities lending collateral - -
Investments 100,021,751 2,538,953,795
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Members 43,835 -
Employers 852,147 -
Interest and dividends - -
Other - 118,039,530
Due from other funds 32,621,627 -
Other - -
Total Assets 142,594,146 2,656,993,840
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 141,921,370 -
Benefits payable - -
Securities lending collateral and rebates payable - -
Due to other funds 672,776 1,877,586
Total Liabilities 142,594,146 1,877,586
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits and Other Purposes $ - 2,655,116,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Pension and Other
Employee Benefits
Trust Funds

721,882,694
1,209,086,214
74,028,878,813

176,414,212
3,034,973,673
5,406,223
1,304,988,771
16,074,243

80,497,704,843

132,747,277
1,267,168,212
1,207,235,246

7,256,705

2,614,407,440

$

77,883,297,403

39

Private Purpose
Trust Funds

2,574,620

12,448,072

15,022,692

4,282,917

315,434

4,598,351

10,424,341




STATE OF NEW JERSEY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Pension and Other

Investment Employee Benefits Private Purpose
Trust Fund Trust Funds Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Members $ - $ 2,309,269,955 -
Employers - 6,907,585,164 -
Other 13,491,167,281 4,251,107 -
Total Contributions 13,491,167,281 9,221,106,226 -
Investment Income:
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - (222,910,462) -
Interest and dividends 3,507,537 1,958,041,278 19,277
Total Investment Income 3,507,537 1,735,130,816 19,277
Less investment expense - 13,056,983 -
Net Investment Income 3,507,537 1,722,073,833 19,277
Miscellaneous - - 1,277,212
Total Additions 13,494,674,818 10,943,180,059 1,296,489
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments - 13,923,434,132 -
Refunds of contributions - 157,270,934 -
Refunds and transfers to other systems - - 8,848
Administrative expense 1,877,586 46,498,279 -
Payments in accordance with trust agreements - - 736,978
Distributions to shareholders 14,183,849,500 - -
Total Deductions 14,185,727,086 14,127,203,345 745,826
Total Changes in Net Assets Held in Trust (691,052,268) (3,184,023,286) 550,663
Net Assets - July 1, 2011 3,346,168,522 81,067,320,689 9,873,678
Net Assets - June 30, 2012 $ 2,655,116,254 $ 77,883,297,403 $ 10,424,341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2012

New Jersey New Jersey Rutgers, The
Transit Turnpike State University
Corporation Authority of New Jersey
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 114,809,772 $ 203,513,456 413,579,000
Investments 30,477,409 577,821,037 330,738,000
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Federal government 124,257,603 - -
Loans - - -
Mortgages - - -
Other 39,503,250 47,965,099 155,942,000
Due from external parties 93,742,559 3,638,603 -
Inventories 114,531,017 16,197,661 4,012,000
Other 10,496,351 24,864,867 14,143,000
Total Current Assets 527,817,961 874,000,723 918,414,000
Noncurrent Assets
Investments 1,402,534,548 1,634,697,898 882,048,000
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Loans - - -
Mortgages - - -
Other 4,487,550 217,165 98,738,000
Capital assets - nondepreciated 1,370,085,640 2,701,790,032 487,380,000
Capital assets - depreciated, net 6,027,642,528 4,053,161,663 1,730,908,000
Derivative instrument asset - - -
Other 17,008 137,081,122 16,229,000
Total Noncurrent Assets 8,804,767,274 8,526,947,880 3,215,303,000
Deferred Outflows 10,750,452 88,029,208 44,689,000
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 9,343,335,687 9,488,977,811 4,178,406,000
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 252,695,994 161,759,357 175,042,000
Due to external parties 26,890,815 189,101,524 -
Interest payable - 208,887,966 7,333,000
Deferred revenue - 3,967,650 61,991,000
Current portion of long-term obligations 282,911,483 135,666,660 40,818,000
Other 128,861,043 198,650 81,505,000
Total Current Liabilities 691,359,335 699,581,807 366,689,000
Noncurrent Liabilities
Net pension obligation - - -
Net OPEB obligation 294,739,481 208,258,200 -
Pollution remediation 17,647,150 31,090,000 -
Derivative instrument liability - 141,400,963 44,689,000
Other 3,019,208,873 8,378,019,541 1,075,887,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,331,595,504 8,758,768,704 1,120,576,000
Deferred Inflows - - -
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 4,022,954,839 9,458,350,511 1,487,265,000
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,662,256,988 (119,761,434) 1,201,661,000
Restricted for:
Capital projects 4,970,767 - 43,425,000
Debt service - 133,839,244 -
Other purposes - - 777,512,000
Unrestricted (346,846,907) 16,549,490 668,543,000
Total Net Assets $ 5,320,380,848 $ 30,627,300 2,691,141,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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University of Medicine and
Dentistry of New Jersey

Non-Major
Component Units

Total Component Units

$ 203,178,000 $ 2,810,870,163 $ 3,745,950,391
44,941,000 4,250,074,422 5,234,051,868
7,118,000 51,294,038 182,669,641
4,833,000 264,436,082 269,269,082

- 98,075,000 98,075,000

301,897,000 199,247,058 744,554,407

- 58,142,183 155,523,345

16,798,000 1,537,747 153,076,425
22,618,000 149,353,859 221,476,077
601,383,000 7,883,030,552 10,804,646,236
169,974,000 1,371,726,864 5,460,981,310
33,605,000 3,753,896,833 3,787,501,833

- 2,567,486,208 2,567,486,208

- 17,135,416 120,578,131

29,079,000 930,206,080 5,518,540,752
835,208,000 4,744,583,726 17,391,503,917

- 16,574,020 16,574,020

80,179,000 182,875,757 416,381,887
1,148,045,000 13,584,484,904 35,279,548,058
- 59,925,030 203,393,690
1,749,428,000 21,527,440,486 46,287,587,984
275,551,000 284,276,994 1,149,325,345

- 25,926,644 241,918,983

3,552,000 92,663,606 312,436,572
75,717,000 156,638,167 298,313,817
18,273,000 449,785,098 927,454,241

- 335,608,495 546,173,188

373,093,000 1,344,899,004 3,475,622,146

- 31,406,499 31,406,499

- 141,964,936 644,962,617

- 2,350,000 51,087,150

- 76,499,050 262,589,013

698,883,000 11,141,457,714 24,313,456,128
698,883,000 11,393,678,199 25,303,501,407

- 227,646,563 227,646,563
1,071,976,000 12,966,223,766 29,006,770,116
282,443,000 2,065,727,050 9,092,326,604
10,455,000 51,953,761 110,804,528
2,212,000 915,459,371 1,051,510,615
366,104,000 3,693,607,860 4,837,223,860
16,238,000 1,834,468,678 2,188,952,261

$ 677,452,000 8,561,216,720 $ 17,280,817,868
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Expenses

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Net (Expense) Revenue

General Revenue
Payments from State
Total General Revenue
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year (Restated)
Net Assets - End of Year

New Jersey
Transit
Corporation

New Jersey
Turnpike
Authority

Rutgers, The
State University
of New Jersey

$ 2,529,270,531

$ 1,128,169,483

$ 1,936,277,000

960,282,114 1,025,217,662 905,432,000
758,519,052 12,850,505 815,250,000
468,187,818 - 7,607,000

(342,281,547) (90,101,316) (207,988,000
285,026,996 8,074,367 262,360,000
285,026,996 8,074,367 262,360,000
(57,254,551) (82,026,949) 54,372,000

5,377,635,399 112,654,249 2,636,769,000
$ 5320380848 $ 30627300 $ 2,691,141,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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University of Medicine and
Dentistry of New Jersey

$ 1,825,779,000

1,103,928,000
502,231,000
4,826,000

(214,794,000)

205,938,000

205,938,000

(8,856,000)
686,308,000

$ 677,452,000

Non-Major
Component Units

$ 4,278,262,769

1,710,839,920
1,395,064,782
871,284,930

(301,073,137)

352,995,883

352,995,883

51,922,746
8,509,293,974

$ 8,561,216,720
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Total Component Units

$ 11,697,758,783

5,705,699,696
3,483,915,339
1,351,905,748

(1,156,238,000)

1,114,395,246

1,114,395,246

(41,842,754)
17,322,660,622

$ 17,280,817,868




Note

© 00O N oo o B~ W DN

I e e N el o e
O © 0O N oo oA W N P, O

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INDEX

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Other Accounting Disclosures
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS ........c.ciiieiiiieiieie ettt sttt s b s e b e bt esaeseste e ebe e ensere s e
INVESTMEINLS ... e et e et e e ee e et e e ee et e e s e e e re s
Securities LeNdiNG COIALEIAl ..ottt ettt se et ae e st ebesesbesbene e
RECEIVADIES ...t
CAPILAI ASSELS ...tttk sttt ettt et et eh e he e eb e s b eh e e e e e e Rt b eR e e R e R eE e R e R e eR e bRt R e R e R eReeRe b ebeebeneereteneas
INEErfUND TTANSACTIONS ..ottt n et neerer e er s
SNOFE-LEIMN DIEDL ...ttt e b ettt
(o] gTo R =T 0 @] o] 1o =L o] OSSOSO
Risk Management and INSUFANCE COVEIAGE «....cuveveurruireeuereeirtereesistesesteseeseetesesseseesessessenessesessessenesseseenessssessesesnenns
DIBIIVALIVES ....ocviieiiiteiit et bbb b bbb e
Other Liabilities — CUITENT .....c.oiieiiieie ettt en e
Net Assets Restricted By Enabling Legislation/Governmental Fund Balances............cccooeveineniienciennciene e
Other Financing Sources/Uses — OthEr .......ccc.coiveiieiiniieisesi e et e
OPEIALING LBASES ....cvvverieieitesitesiete sttt ettt ettt et b e e e be s be st e s et e e e b e b ess et e b beeses b ebese e b e s e e e b e ssesesbeseebensebesbe st etenee
Retirement Systems, Health Benefits, and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits ...
COMPONENT UNIES 1.ttt b et st s et e e b e e e s s b et b e st e s b et e e ebessese s b eseeben b ebesbeneebe e ebensareabesens
CoNtINGENT LIADITITIES ..c.vvivieieici ettt r e et st e et et e st e et st te e ne et e s e

SUDSEOUENT EVENES ...ttt ettt ettt st b e et s b et bt ee e s et e se b e s e Rt e beee e eees et e st et eneeresbeneareaeenens

46

Page

47
56
58
59
65
65
66
68
69
70
75
76
79
79
81
81
82
91
95
97



STATE OF NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial statements have been prepared
primarily from accounts and records maintained by the Director of the Office of Management and Budget. The financial data for
the various public benefit corporations, authorities, commissions, colleges, and universities has been derived from reports
prepared by those organizations based on their independent accounting systems.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes the State of New Jersey includes all fund types, departments, and agencies of the State, as well
as boards, commissions, authorities, colleges, and universities, for which the State is financially accountable. The following
circumstances set forth the State's financial accountability for a legally separate organization:

1. The State is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and (a) it is
able to impose its will on that organization or (b) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the State.

2. The State may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the State regardless of whether the
organization has (a) a separately elected governing board or (b) a jointly appointed board.

Entities for which the State is financially accountable such as boards, commissions, authorities, colleges and universities are
considered component units. These component units are included in the State's reporting entity because of the significance of
their operational or financial relationships with the State. Component units are either discretely presented or blended. Discrete
presentation entails reporting component unit financial data in columns separate from the financial data of the primary
government (the State). Blending requires the component unit's balances and transactions to be reported in a manner similar to
the balances and transactions of the State.

The following organizations comprise the State's component units. The Garden State Preservation Trust, the New Jersey
Building Authority, the New Jersey Schools Development Authority, the Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation, and the
New Jersey Transportation Trust Fund Authority are blended component units since they provide services entirely or almost
entirely to the State and thus are fiscally dependent upon the State. Additional pertinent information related to them is disclosed
in the notes of the primary government. All other component units have been discretely presented. Descriptions of the discretely
presented component units and addresses from which complete financial statements of the respective component units can be
obtained is detailed in Note 18.

COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

The College of New Jersey

Kean University

Montclair State University

New Jersey City University

New Jersey Institute of Technology

Ramapo College of New Jersey

The Richard Stockton College of New Jersey
Rowan University

Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey
Thomas Edison State College

University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey
The William Paterson University of New Jersey
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AUTHORITIES

Atlantic City Convention and Visitors Authority
Casino Reinvestment Development Authority
Garden State Preservation Trust

Higher Education Student Assistance Authority
New Jersey Building Authority

New Jersey Economic Development Authority
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust
New Jersey Health Care Facilities Financing Authority
New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission

New Jersey Redevelopment Authority

New Jersey Schools Development Authority
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
New Jersey Transit Corporation

New Jersey Transportation Trust Fund Authority
New Jersey Turnpike Authority

New Jersey Water Supply Authority

South Jersey Port Corporation

South Jersey Transportation Authority

Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all
of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these government-wide statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intragovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally separate component units
for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of net assets measures not just current assets and liabilities, but also long-term assets and liabilities such as
capital assets (including infrastructure assets) and long-term obligations. The difference between the State’s assets and its
liabilities is its net assets. Net assets are displayed in three components - invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted;
and unrestricted. Net assets are restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed or are imposed by
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The amount of net assets that are restricted by enabling legislation is disclosed
in Note 14. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the State’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The statement of activities is presented in a format that reports the net (expense) revenue of the State’s individual functions.
The net (expense) revenue format reports the relative financial burden of each of the State’s functions on its taxpayers. This
format identifies the extent to which each function of the government draws from the general revenues of the State or is self-
financed through licenses, fees, permits, and other revenues.

Program revenues originate from the program or from parties other than the government’s taxpayers or citizens as a whole and
reduce the expenses of the function to be financed by general revenues. Categories of program revenues that are separately
reported in the statement are charges for services, program specific operating grants and contributions, and program specific
capital grants and contributions. Charges for services are revenues from exchange or exchange-like transactions with external
parties that purchase, use, or directly benefit from the program’s goods, services, or privileges. These revenues include fees
charged for specific services, licenses and permits, and operating special assessments, as well as payments from exchange
transactions with other governments. Program specific operating and capital grants and contributions are revenues from
mandatory and voluntary nonexchange transactions with external parties that are restricted for use in a particular program. All

48



other revenues are general revenues, including all taxes, even if levied for a specific purpose. A special item is a significant
transaction or other event within the control of management that is either (1) unusual in nature, or (2) infrequent in occurrence.
An extraordinary item is a transaction or other event that is both (1) unusual in nature and (2) infrequent in occurrence.

In the statement of activities, all expenses are reported by function except those that are special or extraordinary items. Each
function reports direct expenses — those specifically associated with a service, program, or department and therefore clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Some functions, such as government direction, management and control, include expenses
that are indirect expenses of other functions. The State does not allocate indirect expenses to the other functions.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and component units.
However, the fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide statements. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The government-wide financial statements
report all financial and capital assets (including infrastructure assets), short and long-term liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains,
and losses using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Activity and balances resulting
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place; those resulting from nonexchange
transactions are recognized based on the provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Transactions.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the current financial resources
measurement focus, only current assets and liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these
funds present increases and decreases in net current assets.

In accordance with the modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual; that is, when
they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. Available means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Generally, these revenues which are
considered to be susceptible to accrual include amounts received during the three month period subsequent to June 30 that were
earned as of June 30. On an exception basis, the State will occasionally accrue amounts received after this three month period
but within twelve months subsequent to June 30. Those revenues which are considered to be susceptible to accrual include sales
tax, individual income taxes, corporate income taxes, and federal grants. Licenses, fees, permits and other sources are recognized
when received since they normally are measurable only at that time. Revenue refunds payable are recorded as other liabilities.
Unapplied overpayments of Corporation Business Tax and Gross Income Tax are recorded when a final determination is made as
to the ultimate disposition of the overpayments.

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liabilities are incurred. Expenditures for compensated absences, claims, and
judgments are recorded to the extent they would normally be liquidated with available financial resources. Disbursements for
prepaid expenses, inventory items, and fixed assets are recorded when expenditures are incurred. Expenditures for principal and
interest on general obligation long-term debt are recognized when due.

Proprietary Funds, Fiduciary Funds, and Component Units Financial Statements - The financial statements of the
proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and component units are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide statements previously described.

Each proprietary fund has the option under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), Statement No. 20, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, to
elect to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989 unless FASB
conflicts with GASB. The State has elected to not apply FASB pronouncements issued after the applicable date.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The State’s enterprise funds are the Unemployment Compensation Fund and the State Lottery Fund.

The Unemployment Compensation Fund’s principal ongoing operations consist of assessments received from employers and
employees and the subsequent disbursement of monies to persons entitled to receive unemployment benefits. Collections and
disbursements to eligible recipients are classified as operating revenues and expenses. The State Lottery Fund’s principal
ongoing operations, which are classified as operating revenues and expenses, consist of receipts from lottery ticket sales and
subsequent disbursements of monies to lottery winners.

E. Fund Accounting

The financial activities of the State are recorded in individual funds, each of which is deemed to be a separate accounting entity.
The State uses fund accounting to report on its financial position and results of operations. Fund accounting is designed to
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government
functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which represent the fund’s
assets, liabilities, residual equities or balances, revenues, and expenditures or expenses. Separate financial statements are
provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements, with non-major funds being
combined into a single column.

1. Major Funds

The State reports the General Fund and the Property Tax Relief Fund as major governmental funds. The State also
reports the State Lottery Fund and the Unemployment Compensation Fund as major enterprise funds. Descriptions are
as follows:

a. General Fund - This fund accounts for all State revenues not otherwise restricted by statute. The largest part of the
total financial operations of the State is accounted for in the General Fund. Most revenues received from taxes,
federal sources, and certain miscellaneous revenue items are recorded in this Fund. The Annual Appropriations
Act enacted by the State Legislature provides the basic framework for the operations of the General Fund.

b. Property Tax Relief Fund - This fund accounts for revenues from the New Jersey Gross Income Tax and a portion
of the New Jersey Sales and Use Tax. Revenues realized are dedicated by the State Constitution. All receipts
from taxes levied on personal income of individuals, estates, and trusts must be appropriated exclusively for the
purpose of reducing or offsetting property taxes. P.L. 2006, c.44 increased the Sales and Use Tax rate to seven
percent from six percent. Of the additional one percent, one half of a percent was dedicated to the Property Tax
Relief Fund. Annual appropriations are made from the fund, pursuant to formulas established by the State
Legislature, to counties, municipalities, and school districts.

c. State Lottery Fund - Monies derived from the sale of State lottery tickets are deposited into this fund.
Disbursements are authorized for the payment of prizes to holders of winning lottery tickets and for the
administrative expenses of the Division of State Lottery. Remaining balances are paid to the General Fund in
support of the amounts annually appropriated for State institutions and for education. The present value of
obligations for future installment payments of lottery prizes funded by the purchase of deposit fund contracts are
accounted for in this fund.

d. Unemployment Compensation Fund - This fund accounts for monies deposited from contributions of employers
and employees for unemployment compensation, amounts credited or advances made by the federal government,
and amounts received herein from any other source. After consideration is given to any claim for refund of
overpayment of contributions, the remainder is transferred by the Division of Employment Security to the
Treasurer of the United States for credit to the State of New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Fund and held
by the Treasurer of the United States in the State of New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund. Drawdowns against
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the State of New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund are made by requests submitted to the Treasurer of the United
States by the Division of Employment Security on an as-needed basis, whereby amounts are transferred back to
the Unemployment Compensation Fund and are then disbursed by the Division of Employment Security to
persons entitled to receive unemployment benefits. Any shortfall in the Unemployment Compensation Fund
needed to pay benefits is covered by federal statutes, which authorize advances from the federal government for
unemployment benefits. Such advances are repayable by increased rates on federally taxable wages reported by
New Jersey employers, or the advances may be repaid out of the fund assets at any time by the Governor.

2. Governmental Fund Types

a. Special Revenue Funds — These funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital
projects. The term “proceeds of specific revenue sources” establishes that one or more specific restricted or
committed revenues should be the foundation for a special revenue fund.

b. Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital related outflows financed
by proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.

3. Fiduciary Fund Types

a. Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds - These funds report resources that are required to be held in
trust for members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, other post-
employment benefit plans, and other employee benefit plans, such as the deferred compensation plan.

b. Investment Trust Fund - This fund reports an investment pool that consolidates monies from municipalities,
counties, school districts, and any other public body, corporate or politic.

c. Private Purpose Trust Funds - These funds report all other trust arrangements for which principal and income
benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

d.  Agency Funds - These funds report resources held by the State in a purely custodial capacity. These funds
typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of the resources to external parties.

4. Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Funds - These funds may be used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external users for
goods and services. Activities are required to be reported as enterprise funds if laws or regulations require that the
activity’s costs of providing services be recovered with fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues.

F. Appropriations and Outstanding Debt

The State Constitution provides that the Legislature may not create a debt (where total outstanding debt would exceed one
percent of total appropriations for the year) unless such law has been submitted to the people at a general election and approved
by a majority of the legally qualified voters. After approval by the electorate, and prior to any bond sale, the Legislature may
make appropriations up to the legally authorized amount of such bonds, which enables the State to enter into contracts with
vendors.

51



G.

1.

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposits encompass the State's cash on deposit with financial institutions and several cash equivalents, including
certificates of deposit. All deposits including cash equivalents that are subject to federal or state depository insurance
generally are classified as deposits. Only investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered
to be cash equivalents. See Note 3 for details.

Investments

Statutes of the State of New Jersey and regulations of the State Investment Council authorize the Division of
Investment to invest in domestic and international equities and exchange traded funds; covered call and put options;
equity futures contracts; obligations of the U.S. Treasury, government agencies, corporations, international
corporations, governments and agencies; bank loans; interest rate swap transactions; credit default swaps; fixed income
exchange traded funds; U.S. Treasury futures contracts; New Jersey State and Municipal general obligations; public
authority revenue obligations; collateralized notes and mortgages; commercial paper; certificates of deposit; repurchase
agreements; bankers acceptances; guaranteed income contracts; funding agreements; money market funds; private
equity; real estate; other real assets; and absolute return strategy funds.

In addition to the amounts invested directly, most of the funds included herein participate in the State of New Jersey
Cash Management Fund wherein amounts also contributed by other units of government are combined into a large
scale investment program. The Pension Trust Funds also participate in a Common Pension Trust Fund pool whereby
amounts contributed by the various Pension Trust Funds are combined for the purpose of investment. Participation in
the Cash Management Fund investment pool and the Common Pension Trust Fund investment pool by State funds is
reflected as investments in the Balance Sheets of the respective funds. Amounts contributed to the Cash Management
Fund investment pool by local governments and other entities which are not part of the State’s reporting entity, are
reflected as investments in the Balance Sheet of the Investment Trust Fund.

Amounts contributed to the Cash Management Fund investment pool are recorded at cost, which approximates fair
value. Any differences between cost and fair value for Cash Management Fund pool investments are immaterial.
Other investments are recorded at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. See Note 4 for
additional details.

Securities Lending Collateral

The Pension Trust Funds participate in securities lending programs with their custodian banks, whereby securities are
loaned to brokers and, in return, the Pension Trust Funds have rights to the collateral received. All of the securities
held in the Common Pension Trust Fund investment pool are eligible for the securities lending program. Collateral
received may consist of cash, letters of credit, or government securities having a market value equal to or exceeding
102 percent (U.S. dollar denominated) or 105 percent (non-U.S. dollar denominated) of the value of the loaned
securities at the time the loan is made. The contracts with the Common Pension Trust Fund investment pool custodian
banks require them to indemnify the investment pool if the brokers fail to return the securities or fail to pay the
investment pool for income distributions by the securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. The securities loans
can be terminated by notification by either the broker or the investment pool. The term to maturity of the securities
loans is generally matched with the term to maturity of the investment of cash collateral. As of June 30, 2012, the
Pension Trust Funds have no aggregate credit risk exposure to brokers because the collateral amount held by the
Pension Trust Funds exceeded the market value of the securities on loan. See Note 5 for additional details.
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Receivables

Receivables in the State's governmental, fiduciary, and proprietary funds, Component Units - Authorities, and
Component Units - College and University Funds are stated net of allowances for uncollectable amounts and primarily
consist of federal revenues, taxes, assessments, loans, interest and dividends, contributions due from employers and
members to the respective pension funds, mortgages, and other receivables. See Note 6 for details.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are tangible and intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives that
extend beyond a single reporting period. Capital assets are reported in the statement of net assets at cost or historical
cost based on appraisals or other acceptable methods when historical cost information is not available. Donated fixed
assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the time of donation. The State’s capital assets consist of:

a. All land, including parks, forests, easements, development rights, highways, and right-of-ways.
b. Infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, and dams.
c.  All general government buildings, including hospital, care, and correctional facilities.

d. Land improvements, machinery and equipment, software, and motor vehicles used in general operations
with a unit cost of at least $25,000, $20,000, $100,000, and $30,000 respectively. For the purpose of
reporting, machinery and equipment, and software are consolidated into one category.

e.  Capital projects in the process of construction.

To measure depreciation expense, the State used the straight-line method, whereby the historical cost (or other
capitalized amount) of depreciable assets, less their estimated salvage values, is allocated in equal annual amounts over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. To estimate the useful lives of its capital assets, the State uses guidelines from
industry organizations. There is no depreciation recorded for land, easements, construction in progress, and rights-of-
way.

Capital leases which are classified as capital assets are recorded in amounts equal to the lesser of the fair value of the
asset or the present value of the future net minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease.

The State does not capitalize and depreciate works of art, historical treasures, and similar assets because the assets
cannot be reasonably valued and/or the assets have inexhaustible useful lives. Capital assets utilized in the government
funds are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements. See Note 7 for additional details.

Interfund/Intrafund Transactions

Interfund Transactions - During the course of normal operations, the State has numerous routine transactions between
funds, including expenditures, and transfers of resources to provide administrative services, program services, debt
service, and compliance with legal mandates, such as legislation requiring the transfer of investment earnings from a
capital project fund to the General Fund. In the fund financial statements, these transactions generally are recorded as
transfers to/transfers from other funds and due to/due from other funds. Operating transfers represent legally authorized
transfers from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the resources are to be expended and do not
represent reimbursement of expenses.

Intrafund Transactions - Intrafund transactions, as a result of contracts among departments within the same fund, are
considered expenditures by the contractor and revenues by the contractee in the fund financial statements.
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As a general rule, intrafund revenues and expenditures, interfund transfers, and interfund receivables and payables
have been eliminated in the government-wide financial statements. An exception is the net residual amounts due
between governmental and business-type activities, which is recorded as internal balances. Receivables from and
payables to fiduciary funds are recorded in the statement of net assets as receivable from and payable to external
parties.

H. Liabilities

1.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues at the fund level arise when potential revenue does not meet the available criterion for recognition
in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the State before it has a legal claim.
In subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, or when the State has a legal claim to the
resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized. Deferred
revenues at the government-wide level arise only when the State receives resources before it has a legal claim to these
resources.

Deferred revenue in the General Fund, at both levels, consists principally of amounts due from the Port Authority of
New York and New Jersey.

Long-term Obligations

The State’s long-term debt is divided into bonded and non-bonded categories. Bonded categories include general
obligation bonds, revenue bonds, certain capital leases, installment obligations, certificates of participation,
unamortized premium, Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation Bonds (TSFC), unamortized deferral on refunding,
and unamortized interest on capital appreciation bonds. Non-bonded categories include accumulated sick and vacation
payable, certain capital leases, loans payable, net pension obligation, pollution remediation obligation, other
postemployment benefits, other, advance from federal government, and deposit fund contracts. The liability for long-
term items described above is reflected in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial
statements as noncurrent liabilities, due in more than one year and as current liabilities-current portion of long-term
obligations, if due within a year.

Bond and note premiums and discounts are amortized to interest expense based on the straight-line method. Capital
appreciation bonds are reported at its net or accreted value rather than at face value. Bonds and notes payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges in other
assets and are amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the governmental fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
expenditures.

I. Net Assets

1.

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted - Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either: (a) externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of the other governments, or (b) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted - Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.”

Held in Trust for Pension Benefits and Other Purposes - This is used to accumulate all active member, State, and

other employer contributions and investment income from which all benefit payments are made; also used to
accumulate resources received as a result of trust arrangements or to accumulate resources held for investment.
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Fund Balances

1.

Nonspendable - Fund balance includes amounts that are not in a spendable form or are legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact (i.e., the principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted - Fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external
resource providers or imposed by law through constitutional provisions, or through enabling legislation.

Committed - Fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by
the government taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally.

Assigned - Fund balance comprises amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes. Intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority. In
governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or
committed. This indicates that resources in other governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the
purpose of that fund.

Unassigned - Fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all amounts not contained in
the other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any purpose. If another governmental fund
has a fund balance deficit, then it will be reported as a negative amount in the unassigned classification in that fund.
Based on the definitions of the restricted, committed, and assigned fund balance classifications, positive unassigned
amounts can exist only in the General Fund. The State’s General Fund reflects both committed and unassigned fund
balances. Initially, expenditures are made from existing committed fund balances, and if necessary, additional
expenditures are made from unassigned fund balances.

Fiscal Year End Differences

The following component units have fiscal years that ended on December 31, 2011:

Component Units - Authorities

Atlantic City Convention and Visitors Authority
Casino Reinvestment Development Authority

New Jersey Economic Development Authority
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

New Jersey Health Care Facilities Financing Authority
New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission

New Jersey Redevelopment Authority

New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority

New Jersey Turnpike Authority

South Jersey Port Corporation

South Jersey Transportation Authority

Special Revenue Funds

New Jersey Building Authority (blended component unit)
New Jersey Schools Development Authority (blended component unit)
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NOTE 2 - OTHER ACCOUNTING DISCLOSURES

A. Change in Accounting Policy/Reclassifications

The State has adopted GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, the
provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2011.

As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definition, the following fund
has been reclassified.

Fund Classification Fund Classification
Fund Name June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012
Remediation Guarantee Fund General Fund Special Revenue Fund

B. Deficit Net Asset Balance

The Health Benefits Fund-State is on an actuarial basis of accounting, therefore, it has recorded a claims liability of $178
million. There are sufficient cash balances to pay claims that are billed to the fund. In order to pay unemployment claims in
excess of available resources, it was necessary for the Unemployment Compensation Fund to borrow from the federal
government, resulting in a deficit net asset balance of $253.1 million.

C. Deficit Fund Balance

It is anticipated that bond sales during Fiscal Year 2013 will relieve the current deficit fund balances of the 2009 Farmland
Preservation Fund, the 2009 Green Acres Fund, and the 2009 Historic Preservation Fund.

D. Joint Ventures

The Port Authority of New York and New Jersey
225 Park Avenue South
New York, NY 10003-1604
WwWw.panynj.gov

Joint ventures are independently constituted entities generally created by two or more governments for a specific purpose such
as contracting and maintaining an interstate bridge. Pursuant to current financial reporting standards, the State does not record its
equity in joint ventures. The only significant joint venture in which the State of New Jersey participates is the Port Authority of
New York and New Jersey. Individually published financial statements may be obtained by writing the Port Authority of New
York and New Jersey at the above mentioned address. Other joint ventures are immaterial.

The Port Authority is a municipal corporate instrumentality of the States of New York and New Jersey created by compact
between the two states in 1921 with the consent of the Congress of the United States. It is authorized and directed to plan,
develop, and operate terminals and other facilities of transportation and commerce, and to advance projects in the general fields
of transportation, economic development, and world trade that contribute to promoting and protecting the commerce and
economy of the Port District, defined in the compact, which comprises an area of about 1,500 square miles in both states,
centering about New York Harbor. The Governor of each State appoints six of the twelve members of the governing Board of
Commissioners, subject to confirmation by the respective State Senate. Each Governor has from time to time exercised the
statutory power to veto the actions of the commissioners from their state.

The commissioners serve six-year overlapping terms as public officials without compensation. They establish Authority

policy, appoint an Executive Director to implement it, and also appoint a General Counsel to act as legal advisor to the Board and
to the Executive Director. The Authority undertakes only those projects authorized by the two states.
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The compact envisions the Port Authority as being financially self-sustaining and, as such, it must obtain the funds necessary
for the construction or acquisition of facilities upon the basis of its own credit, its reserve funds, and its future revenues. The
agency has neither the power to pledge the credit of either state or any municipality nor to levy taxes or assessments.

Consolidated financial statements for the Port Authority including the Passenger Facility Charges Program for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011 disclosed the following (expressed in millions):

Financial Position
Combined Total

Total Assets $ 33,917.7
Total Liabilities 22,191.8
Net Assets $ 11,725.9

Operating Results

Operating Revenues $ 4,014.9
Operating Expenses (2,564.9)
Depreciation and Amortization (930.3)
Income from Operations 519.7
Non-operating Revenues (Expense), Net 181.6
Net Income $ 701.3

Changes in Net Assets

Balance January 1, 2011 $ 11,024.6
Net Income 701.3
Balance December 31, 2011 $ 11,725.9

Except for Special Project Bonds, the Authority’s debt is secured by its full faith and credit, its reserve funds, or a pledge of
future revenues. Special Project Bonds are secured by a mortgage on the financed properties. At December 31, 2011, Port
Authority debt consisted of the following (expressed in millions):

Bonds, Notes, and Other Obligations

Consolidated Bonds and Notes $ 15,550.0
Special Project Bonds 1,741.4
Operating Asset Financing 474.1
Capital Asset Financing 1,783.1
19,548.6

Less: Unamortized Discount and Premium (1.2)
Total $ 19,547 .4
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E. Other

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the debt and assets of the New Jersey Building
Authority have been reduced for presentation herein in the amount of $640.1 million, the amount of the present value of future
lease payments by the State to the New Jersey Building Authority as of December 31, 2011.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial
Assistance, an additional $1.3 billion in federal grant revenues and economic planning, development, and security expenditures
has been recorded.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All funds maintain their own individual bank account(s) except for the Casino Control, Casino Revenue, Gubernatorial
Elections, Special Transportation, and Property Tax Relief Funds which are in the General Fund bank accounts. The balances of
cash for these funds held in the General Fund, after receipt and disbursement transactions, are accounted for and reflected in the
respective due from or due to accounts on the balance sheet presented in the fund financial statements.

New Jersey Revised Statutes (c.52:18-16.1) set the policy that the State Treasurer must follow when depositing State funds and
for the collateralization of such funds. The relationship between the face amount of the collateral and the amount of a deposit is
not statutory but is stipulated by the State Treasurer. All bank accounts in which the State Treasurer deposits funds must be
collateralized. Securities pledged as collateral must consist of obligations of, or be guaranteed by, the United States or the State
of New Jersey. Securities are pledged in the State Treasurer's name and held by a custodian bank under a custodian agreement.

Collateral requirements for demand accounts and time accounts for banks having less than $15 million in State deposits per
month require 100 percent coverage of the highest daily balance of the preceding month. For banks that have State deposits
which total $15 million or more per month, the amount of collateral required is 120 percent of the total average daily balance on
deposit in the bank during each calendar quarter of the year. The State Department of the Treasury monitors the level of
collateral required to be maintained by the banks.

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, requires that the State disclose bank deposits that are
subject to custodial credit risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the State will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that may be in
the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2012 the State’s bank balances amounted to $281.1 million. Of these balances,
$2.2 million was exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.
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NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

Statutes of the State of New Jersey and regulations of the State Investment Council authorize the Division of Investment to
invest in domestic and international equities and exchange traded funds; covered call and put options; equity futures contracts;
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, government agencies, corporations, international governments and agencies; bank loans; interest
rate swap transactions; credit default swaps; fixed income exchange traded funds; U.S. Treasury futures contracts; state and
municipal general obligations; public authority revenue obligations; collateralized notes and mortgages; commercial paper;
certificates of deposit; repurchase agreements; bankers acceptances; guaranteed income contracts; funding agreements; money
market funds; private equity funds; real estate funds; other real assets; and absolute return strategy funds. Investee institutions
and organizations are prescribed by the statutes and regulations based on such criteria as minimum capital, dividend paying
history, credit history, and other evaluation factors.

The purchase, sale, receipt of income, and other transactions affecting investments are governed by custodial agreements
between the investing funds through the State Treasurer and custodian banks as agents for the funds. State laws and policies set
forth the requirements of such agreements and other particulars as to the size of the custodial institution, amount of the portfolio
to be covered by the agreements, and other pertinent matters.

Federal securities, including those held as collateral on repurchase agreements, are maintained at Federal Reserve Banks in
Philadelphia and New York through the custodian banks, in trust for the State of New Jersey. A significant portion of corporate
equity and debt securities are maintained by the Depository Trust Company (DTC) through the custodian banks in trust for the
State of New Jersey.

Securities not maintained by the Federal Reserve Banks or DTC are in the name of a designated nominee representing the
securities of a particular State fund which establishes the State fund's unconditional right to the securities. The custodian banks,
as agents for the State funds, maintain internal accounting records identifying the securities maintained by the Federal Reserve
Banks and the DTC as securities owned by or pledged to the State funds.

In addition to the amounts invested directly, most of the funds included herein participate in the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund wherein amounts also contributed by other units of government are combined into a large scale investment
program. The Pension Trust Funds also participate in a Common Pension Trust Fund pool whereby amounts contributed by the
various Pension Trust Funds are combined for the purpose of investment. Participation in the Cash Management Fund
investment pool and the Common Pension Trust Fund investment pool by State funds is reflected as investments in the Balance
Sheets of the respective funds. Amounts contributed to the Cash Management Fund investment pool by local governments and
other entities which are not part of the State’s reporting entity, are primarily reflected as investments in the Statement of
Fiduciary Net Assets, Investment Trust Fund.

Amounts contributed to the Cash Management Fund investment pool are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value. Any
differences between cost and fair value for Cash Management Fund pool investments are immaterial. All other investments are
recorded at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, issues publicly available financial reports that
include the financial statements of the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund and the Common Pension Funds. The
financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment,
P.O. Box 290, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0290.

Casino Control, Casino Revenue, Gubernatorial Elections, Special Transportation, and Property Tax Relief Funds do not
maintain separate investment accounts. Since cash transactions are handled by and through the General Fund as described in
Note 3, any available cash balances for these funds reside in the General Fund and are combined with other balances for either
participation in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund or direct investment as part of the General Fund large scale
investment program.

Approximately $399.9 million of investments represents deposit fund contracts for future installment payments of lottery
prizes. Lottery prizes are funded by the purchase of deposit fund contracts which, when matured, will provide amounts sufficient
for future payment of installment prizes. Purchases of deposit fund contracts are recorded as an expenditure in the State Lottery
Fund in the year of purchase. Annuity contracts are carried at their current contract values which are based upon their original
purchase price adjusted for credited interest and amounts already received. The estimated fair value of annuity contracts
approximates the carrying value reflected in the balance sheet. In the event of default in making future payments by the
insurance company from which the contracts were purchased, the State Lottery Commission would be liable for such future
payments.

59



Investments for all funds are as follows (expressed in millions):

Amount Reported
As Investments

Domestic fixed income securities $ 24,716.5
Domestic equities 19,733.2
International equities 13,943.8
Absolute return strategy funds 5,547.0
Private equities 5,489.0
Real estate funds 3,106.7
International fixed income securities 2,877.2
Real assets 1,448.2
Bank loan funds 1,365.0
Mortgages 963.9
Annuity contracts 399.9
Mutual funds 293.4
Put options 0.7
Total investments 79,884.5

Unallocated administrative expenses
and transaction exchanges 1,309.4
Net amount recorded as investments $ 81,193.9

As Reported on the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets (expressed in
millions):

Current Non-Current
Investments Investments Total
Governmental activities $ 3,938.5 $ - $ 3,938.5
Business-type activities 269.3 305.8 575.1
Fiduciary funds 76,680.3 - 76,680.3
Total $ 80,888.1 $ 305.8 $ 81,1939

The State’s investments are subject to various risks. Among these risks are credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate
risk, and foreign currency risk. Each one of these risks is discussed in more detail below.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The credit risk of a
debt instrument is measured by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies such as Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
(Moody’s), Standard & Poor’s Corporation (S&P), or Fitch Ratings (Fitch). Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss
attributed to the magnitude of an investment in a single issuer. There are no restrictions in the amount that can be invested in
United States Treasury and government agency securities. State regulations require minimum credit ratings for certain categories
of fixed income obligations and limit the amount that can be invested in any one issuer or issue. As of June 30, 2012 the
following limits were in effect:
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Limitation of

Issuers'
Minimum Rating (1) Outstanding  Limitation
Category Moody's S&P Fitch Debt of Issue Other Limitations

Corporate obligations Baa3 BBB- BBB- 10% 25% Not more than 5% of fund assets
can be invested in one corporation

International corporate Baa3 BBB- BBB- 10% 25% Limited to not more than 5%

obligations of fund assets in any one issuer;
not more than 10% of fund assets
can be invested in this category

International government Baa3 BBB- BBB- 25% Greater -

and agency obligations of 25% or
$10 million

Collateralized notes and Baa3 BBB- BBB- - 25% Not more than 5% of fund assets

mortgages can be invested in one issuer; not
more than 10% of fund assets (or
20% of the Common Pension Fund
B account within the Common
Pension Fund pool) can be invested
in this category

Commercial paper P-1 A-1 F1 - - -

Certificates of deposit and Certificates of deposit and

bankers acceptances: bankers acceptances cannot
Domestic A3/P-1  A-/A-1  A-/F1 - - exceed 10% of issuer's
International Aa3/P-1 AA-/IA-1 AA-IF1 - - primary capital

Credit default swap transactions Al A+ A+ - - Nominal value of net exposure
to any one counterparty shall
not exceed 10% of fund assets

Guaranteed income contracts A3 A- A- - - -

Money market funds - - - - - Limited to 10% of the assets of the
of the fund; limited to 5% of the
shares or units outstanding

Interest rate swap transactions Al A+ A+ - - Notional value of net exposure to
any one counterparty shall not
exceed 10% of fund assets

Repurchase agreements Aa3 AA- AA- - - -

State and municipal obligations A3 A- A- 10% 10% Limit of 2% of fund assets can be
invested in debt of any one entity
maturing more than 12 months
from purchase

Public Authority revenue A3 A- A- - 10% Limit of 2% of fund assets

obligations in any one authority

Mortgage backed pass through A3 A- A- - - Limit of 5% of fund assets

securities in any one issue

Mortgage backed senior debt - - - - 25% Limit of 5% of fund assets

securities in any one issue

Non-convertible preferred stocks Baa3 BBB- BBB- 10% 25% Limit of 5% of fund assets

of U.S. corporations in any one corporation
Bank loans Baa3 BBB- BBB- 10% - Limit of 10% of fund assets

(1) Short term ratings (e.g. P-1, A-1, F-1) are used for commercial paper and certificates of deposit.
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Up to five percent of the market value of the combined assets of the pension and annuity funds may be invested in corporate
obligations, international corporate obligations, collateralized notes and mortgages, bank loans, non-convertible preferred stocks,
and mortgage backed pass through securities that do not meet the minimum credit rating requirements set forth above.

For securities exposed to credit risk in the fixed income portfolio, the following tables disclose aggregate fair value, by major
credit quality rating category at June 30, 2012. The first table is for bonds rated by Moody’s. The second table uses Standard
and Poor’s and Fitch’s ratings for bonds not rated by Moody’s (expressed in millions):

Moody's Rating

Aaa Aa A Baa Ba P-1
United States Treasury bills $ 15159 $ - $ - $ - 3 - 8 -
United States Treasury notes 3,816.4 - - - - -
United States Treasury TIPS 1,821.5 - - - - -
United States Treasury bonds 1,000.5 - - - - -
United States Treasury strips 583.7 - - - - -
United States Government Agency 289.1 5.4 4.8 - - -
Mortgages/FHLMC/FNMA/GNMA 363.5 - - - - -
Domestic corporate obligations 928.7 1,005.7 3,487.1 3,837.7 351.1 -
International corporate obligations 10.5 - 370.7 275.2 38.9 -
Foreign government obligations 618.2 1,431.4 54.1 - - -
SBA pass through certificates 158.8 - - - - -
Asset backed obligations 16.6 - - - - -
Certificates of deposit - - - - - 1,646.7
Commercial paper - - - - - 1,096.0
Other 94.4 815.7 244.9 18.1 1.2 -
Total $ 112178 $ 32582 $ 41616 $ 41310 $ 3912 $ 27427

Standard & Poor's Rating

AAA AA A BBB B A-1+
Domestic corporate obligations $ - % 865 $ 1648 $ 926 $ 127  $ -
International corporate obligations - 18.1 - - 0.3 -
Certificates of deposit - - - - - 220.0
Other 56.6 53.8 17.7 - - -
Total $ 566 $ 1584 $ 1825 $ 926 §$ 130 $ 220.0

The tables do not include various domestic corporate obligations given a Moody’s rating of B ($487.0 million), Ca ($0.8
million), Caa ($171.3 million), and a Standard and Poor’s rating of BB ($0.2 million), CCC ($5.2 million), international
corporate obligations given a Moody’s rating of B ($36.1 million), and Caa ($12.5 million).

In addition, the Police and Firemen’s mortgages of $963.9 million, domestic corporate obligations of $46.2 million, foreign
government obligations of $18.1 million, asset backed obligations of $51.4 million, and other various investment types of $130.2
million, are unrated.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Commercial paper
must mature with 270 days. Certificates of deposits and bankers acceptance are limited to a term of one year or less. Repurchase
agreements must mature with 30 days. The investment in guaranteed income contracts and funding agreements is limited to a
term of ten years or less.

The following table summarizes the maturities (or, in the case of Remics, Police and Firemen’s mortgages, and mortgage
backed securities, the expected average life) of the fixed income portfolio at June 30, 2012 (expressed in millions):
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Maturities in Years

Total Less More
Fair Value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10
United States Treasury bills $ 15159 $ 15159 $ - $ - 3 -
United States Treasury notes 3,816.4 3,801.3 15.1 - -
United States Treasury TIPS 1,821.5 - 56.1 249.1 1,516.3
United States Treasury bonds 1,000.5 10.3 175.8 935 720.9
United States Treasury strips 583.7 - - - 583.7
United States Government Agency 299.3 0.4 12.9 190.3 95.7
Mortgages/FHLMC/FNMA/GNMA 363.5 - 2.5 1.6 359.4
Domestic corporate obligations 10,677.7 269.7 937.9 3,889.7 5,580.4
International corporate obligations 755.4 - 447 265.4 4453
Foreign government obligations 2,121.8 - 156.9 1,136.3 828.6
Police & Firemen's mortgages 963.9 - 2.0 6.6 955.3
SBA pass through certificates 158.8 - 5.4 153.4 -
Asset backed obligations 68.0 - - 16.6 51.4
Certificates of deposit 1,866.7 1,866.7 - - -
Commercial paper 1,096.0 1,096.0 - - -
Other 1,298.8 3.0 20.1 26.4 1,249.3
Total $ 28,4079 $ 8,563.3 $ 14294 $ 6,0289 $ 12,386.3

Due to unavailability, the table does not include terms for the category of other investment types totaling $133.7 million.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. As
mentioned previously, the State’s Pension Trust Funds participate in the Common Pension Trust Fund pool. The Common
Pension Fund D account within this investment pool reflects the State’s investments in global markets. The fair value of
international preferred and common stocks and issues convertible into common stocks, when combined with the fair value of
international government, agency, and corporate obligations, cannot exceed 30 percent of the fair value of the Common Pension
Fund D account. The market value of emerging market securities cannot exceed more than 1.5 times the percentage derived by
dividing the total market capitalization of the companies included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) Emerging
Market Index by the total market capitalization of the companies included in the MSCI All-Country World Ex-United States
Index of the total market value of the assets held by Common Pension Fund D account. Not more than ten percent of the market
value of the emerging market securities can be invested in the common and preferred stock of any one corporation. The total
amount of stock purchased in any one corporation cannot exceed five percent of its stock classes eligible to vote. State
regulations permit entering into foreign exchange contracts for the purpose of hedging the international portfolio. The State held
forward contract receivables at June 30, 2012 totaling $423.3 million and payables totaling approximately $420.9 million (with a
$2.4 million net gain). At June 30, 2012, the credit ratings of the counterparties to the forward currency contracts had credit
ratings of no less than A3 using Moody’s rating scale. At June 30, 2012, the State had the following foreign currency exposure
based on exchange rates in effect for such day (expressed in millions of U.S. dollars):
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Total Alternative

Currency Fair Value Equities Investments
Australian dollar $ 405.0 $ 405.0 $ -
Brazilian real 172.8 172.8 -
Canadian dollar 992.0 992.0 -
Czech koruna 2.6 2.6 -
Danish krone 99.0 99.0 -
Egyptian pound 204 204 -
Euro dollar 2,043.8 1,683.3 360.5
Hong Kong dollar 539.7 539.7 -
Hungarian forint 18.2 18.2 -
Indonesian rupiah 78.4 78.4 -
Israeli shekel 75 75 -
Japanese yen 1,987.3 1,987.3 -
Malaysian ringgit 38.0 38.0 -
Mexican peso 44.0 44.0 -
Norwegian krone 107.9 107.9 -
Pakistan rupee 7.4 7.4 -
Philippines peso 294 294 -
Polish zolty 19.9 19.9 -
Singapore dollar 219.2 219.2 -
South African rand 148.3 148.3 -
South Korean won 303.6 303.6 -
Swedish krona 358.1 358.1 -
Swiss franc 716.2 716.2 -
Taiwan new dollar 14.1 14.1 -
Thailand baht 66.0 66.0 -
Turkish lira 78.8 78.8 -
United Kingdom sterling 1,293.7 1,281.3 12.4
Total $ 9,811.3 $ 9,438.4 $ 372.9

The State’s interests in alternative investments may contain elements of credit, currency, and market risk. Such risks include,
but are not limited to, limited liquidity, absence of regulatory oversight, dependence upon key individuals, emphasis on
speculative investments (both derivatives and non-marketable investments), and nondisclosure of portfolio composition.
Effective April 18, 2011, State regulations require that not more than 38 percent of the market value of the Pension Fund can be
invested in alternative investments, with limits on the individual categories of real estate (nine percent), real assets (seven
percent), private equity (12 percent), and absolute return strategy (15 percent). Prior to that, the overall limitation was 28 percent
with a seven percent limit on each of the individual categories. The Common Pension Fund E account within the Common
Pension Trust Fund pool reflects the State’s alternative investments. Not more than five percent of the market value of Common
Pension Fund E, plus outstanding commitments, may be committed to any one partnership or investment, without the prior
written approval of the State Investment Council. The investments in Common Pension Fund E cannot comprise more than 20
percent of any one investment manager’s total assets.
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NOTE 5- SECURITIES LENDING COLLATERAL

The State Investment Council policies permit Common Pension Funds A, B, D and E and several of the direct pension plan
portfolios to participate in securities lending programs, whereby securities are loaned to brokers or other borrowers and, in return,
the Funds have rights to the collateral received. All of the publicly traded securities held in Common Pension Funds A, B, D and
E, and certain securities held directly by the pension plans, are eligible for the securities lending program. Collateral received
may consist of cash, letters of credit, or government securities having a market value equal to or exceeding 102% (U.S. dollar
denominated) or 105% (non-U.S. dollar denominated) of the value of the loaned securities at the time the loan is made.
Collateral is marked to market daily and adjusted as needed to maintain the required minimum level.

Effective December 2010, for loans of U.S government securities or sovereign debt issued by non-U.S governments, in the
event that the market value of the collateral falls below 100% of the market value of the outstanding loaned securities to an
individual borrower, or the market value of the collateral of all loans of such securities falls below the collateral requirement,
additional collateral shall be transferred by the borrower to the respective funds no later than the close of the next business day so
that the market value of such additional collateral together with collateral previously delivered meets the collateral requirements.

For securities exposed to credit risk in the collateral portfolio, the following table disclosures aggregate fair value, by major
credit quality rating category at June 30, 2012 (expressed in millions):

Rating
Aaad/AAA Not Rated Total
Repurchase Agreements $ 1,2033 $ - $ 1,203.3
Cash - 3.9 3.9
Totals $ 12033 $ 39 §$ 1,207.2

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that the Pension Funds will not recover the value of the investments, which are
in the possession of an outside party, if the counterparty to the transaction does not fulfill its obligations. The repurchase
agreements’ underlying securities are held in the Pension Fund’s name.

As of June 30, 2012, the Pension Funds had outstanding loaned investment securities with an aggregate fair value of $1,202.2
million. In accordance with GASB accounting standards, the non-cash collateral is not reflected in the financial statements.
There were no borrowers or lending agent default losses, and no recoveries or prior-period losses during the year.

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Fiduciary funds’ receivables are not disclosed in the statement of net assets. However, these receivables are disclosed in the
fund financial statements and consist primarily of amounts due from employers and employees and accrued earnings on
investments. Receivables presented in the statement of net assets are described below.

A. Federal

Federal government grant awards are established against State appropriations. Most Federal government receivables are
comprised of amounts expended against grant awards, the expenditure of which is the basis of reimbursement. Since all amounts
due from the Federal government are considered to be collectible, no allowance has been established for doubtful collections.
Also see Note 19 — Contingent Liabilities.

These Federal receivables are reported in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles as defined in Statement
No. 2 - Grant, Entitlement and Shared Revenue Accounting and Reporting by State and Local Governments published by the
National Council on Governmental Accounting. Inasmuch as encumbrances do not constitute expenditures, and since
recognition of grants and entitlements as revenue is primarily based on expenditures, there is an additional $3.4 billion of Federal
government awards consisting of encumbrances which are considered unearned and unrecorded as of June 30, 2012.

Federal receivable balances in the Unemployment Compensation Fund ($89.4 million) represent unemployment contributions

transferred to the Federal Reserve Bank for deposit in the Federal Unemployment Trust Fund. All monies are invested by the
Federal Government and interest earnings are credited to the Unemployment Compensation Fund.
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B. Departmental

Departmental accounts receivable of $3.9 billion include amounts which were substantially collected within the one month
period subsequent to June 30 and include most major tax revenues. Amounts included in these receivables but not collected
within the one month period subsequent to June 30, 2012 are deemed to be collectible, and are reflected net of allowances
($549.1 million).

C. Loans

Loans receivable of $1.7 billion are reduced by allowances of $65.9 million and include $1.5 billion due from local units of
government and other recipients for environmental projects, $30.3 million loaned for economic development within local units of
government, and $15.1 million loaned for housing and mortgage assistance.
D. Other

Other receivables totaling $987.6 million are reduced by allowances of $508.6 million and include tax receivables due of

$408.2 million, $172.8 million due from the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, $115.5 million from the tobacco
companies, and $32.7 million due from proceeds of Motor Vehicle Commission bonds which are held by the trustee.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets and related accumulated depreciation by category as of June 30, 2012 is as follows (expressed in
millions):

Balance Transfers/ Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions  Adjustments June 30, 2012
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and easements 47651 $ 56.7 $ - 8 25 % 4,824.3
Construction in progress* 3,887.7 1,392.8 - (2,686.2) 2,594.3
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 219.2 - - 35 222.7
Buildings and improvements 3,380.8 37.6 90.9 835 3,411.0
Machinery, equipment, and software 878.9 395 6.6 61.6 973.4
Infrastructure 19,698.2 - - 2,613.8 22,312.0
Total at historical cost 32,829.9 1,526.6 97.5 78.7 34,337.7
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 133.3 7.3 - (0.2) 140.5
Buildings and improvements 1,789.7 124.4 83.9 13.9 1,844.1
Machinery, equipment, and software 466.3 115.3 5.3 - 576.3
Infrastructure 7,640.8 567.3 - 1.7 8,209.8
Total accumulated depreciation 10,030.1 814.3 89.2 15.5 10,770.7
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 22,7998 $ 7123 % 83 $ 632 $ 23,567.0

* Construction in progress includes infrastructure projects and software in development.
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A. Items Not Capitalized and Depreciated

The State possesses certain capital assets that have not been capitalized and depreciated because the assets cannot be reasonably
valued and/or the assets have inexhaustible useful lives. Examples of these assets include, but are not limited to statues,
monuments, forts, lighthouses, and various capitol related furnishings. Collections, such as historical documents, artifacts, works
of art, rare library books, and antique furnishings are not capitalized. These assets are exempted from capitalization as the State
maintains the collections for reasons other than financial gain; the collections are protected, kept unencumbered, cared for and
preserved; and the collections are subject to an organizational policy requiring that the proceeds from sales of collection items be
used to acquire other items for collections.

B. Depreciation and Useful Lives

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method. The State assigned useful lives that were most suitable for the
particular assets. Estimated useful lives were in an allowable range as follows:

Asset Years
Land improvements 10-50
Building and improvements 12-60
Machinery and equipment 4-30
Infrastructure 4-70

Depreciation was charged to functions of the primary government as follows (expressed in millions):

Amount

Public safety and criminal justice $ 825
Physical and mental health 23.6
Educational, cultural, and intellectual development 22.1
Community development and environmental management 22.6
Economic planning, development, and security 24.3
Transportation programs 575.4
Government direction, management, and control 56.6
Special government services 7.2

$ 814.3
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NOTE 8 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

During the course of normal operations, the State has numerous routine transactions between funds, including interfund loans,
expenditures, and transfers of resources to provide administrative services, program services, debt service, and compliance with
legal mandates, such as legislation requiring the transfer of investment earnings from a capital project fund to the General Fund.
In the fund financial statements, these transactions generally are recorded as transfers in/transfers (out) and due to/due from other
funds. Operating transfers represent legally authorized transfers from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the

resources are to be expended and do not represent reimbursement of expenses.

A. Due From/Due To Other Funds

The balances of current interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2012 are presented below (expressed in millions):

Property Non-Major State Unemployment
General Tax Relief Governmental Lottery Compensation Fiduciary
Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Funds Total

Due from:
General Fund $ - $ 15 §$ 1830 $ - $ 11 482 $ 2338
Property Tax

Relief Fund 328.9 - 35 - 16.8 - 349.2
Non-Major

Governmental Funds 402.1 13 159.3 - - - 562.7
State Lottery Fund 107.7 - - - - - 107.7
Unemployment

Compensation Fund - 1.2 18.7 - - - 19.9
Fiduciary Funds 2.4 7.2 - - - 0.5 10.1

Total Due from $ 841.1 $ 112 $ 3645 $ - 3 17.9 487 $ 1,283.4
Due to:
General Fund $ -3 3289 $ 4021 % 1077 $ - 24 % 841.1
Property Tax

Relief Fund 15 - 13 - 1.2 7.2 11.2
Non-Major

Governmental Funds 183.0 35 159.3 - 18.7 - 364.5
Unemployment

Compensation Fund 11 16.8 - - - - 17.9
Fiduciary Funds 48.2 - - - - 0.5 48.7

Total Due to $ 2338 $ 3492 $ 5627 $ 107.7 $ 19.9 101 $ 12834
B. Transfer In/(Out)

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 are presented below (expressed in millions):

Property Non-Major State Unemployment
General Tax Relief ~ Governmental Lottery Compensation Fiduciary
Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Funds Total

Transfers (out) to:
General Fund $ - $ -8 (1,5232) $ (950.1) $ - $ - $ (2,4733)
Non-Major

Governmental Funds (1,113.0) - (1,198.5) - - - (2,311.5)
Total Transfers (Out) $ (1,113.0) $ - 3 (2,721.7) $ (950.1) $ - $ - $ (4,784.8)
Transfers in from:
General Fund $ - $ - $ 1,1130 $ - $ - $ - $ 11130
Non-Major

Governmental Funds 1,523.2 - 1,198.5 - - - 2,721.7
State Lottery Fund 950.1 - - - - - 950.1
Total Transfers In $ 24733 $ - $ 2,311.5 $ - $ - $ $ 47848
Net Transfers $ 13603 $ - $ (4102) $ (950.1) $ - $ $ -
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NOTE 9 - SHORT-TERM DEBT
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes

The State issues short-term debt instruments in the form of tax and revenue anticipation notes in advance of income tax and
corporation business tax collections, depositing the proceeds in the General Fund. These notes are used to provide effective cash
management to fund the imbalances that occur between the collection of revenues and the disbursement of appropriations of the
General Fund and Property Tax Relief Fund. For Fiscal Year 2012, the State, under a resolution executed by the Treasurer on
July 1, 2011, authorized the issuance of Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRAN). On September 1, 2011 the State issued
$600 million of TRAN which matured on June 21, 2012 through a private placement. The State issued an additional $1.1 billion
of TRAN on October 28, 2011, which also matured on June 21, 2012 through a private placement. These notes bear interest from
their date of issuance through maturity or earlier redemption by the State at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the adjusted
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) rate plus a spread. On December 15, 2011, the State issued
$2.15 billion of TRAN that bear an interest rate of 2.0 percent per annum. These notes matured on June 21, 2012. Part of the
proceeds from these notes were used to refund and retire the $1.7 billion of TRAN issued under private placements on September
1, 2011 and October 28, 2011.

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows (expressed in millions):

Outstanding Outstanding

July 1, 2011 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2012
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes $ - $ 3,850.0 $ (3,850.0) $ -
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The State’s long-term debt is divided into bonded and non-bonded categories. Bonded categories include General Obligation
Bonds, Revenue Bonds Payable, certain Capital Leases, Installment Obligations, Certificates of Participation, Tobacco
Settlement Financing Corporation Bonds (TSFC), Unamortized Deferral on Refunding, Unamortized Interest on Capital
Appreciation Bonds, and Unamortized Premium. Non-bonded categories include Accumulated Sick and Vacation Payable,
certain Capital Leases, Loans Payable, Net OPEB Obligation, Net Pension Obligation, Pollution Remediation Obligation,
Advance from Federal Government, and Deposit Fund Contracts.

A. Changes in Long-term Debt

The following schedule represents the changes in the State’s long-term debt (expressed in millions):
Amounts

Outstanding Outstanding  Due Within
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions  June 30,2012  One Year

Governmental Activities
Bonded Debt

General Obligation Bonds $ 2,566.9 $ -3 1822 $ 2,3847 $ 333.8
Revenue Bonds Payable 19,770.6 1,650.6 722.2 20,699.0 477.9
Capital Leases 2325 - 19.9 212.6 10.7
Installment Obligations 18,714.6 1,579.3 2,000.0 18,293.9 1,2135
Certificates of Participation 85.4 38.4 235 100.3 27.7
Tobacco Settlement Financing Corp. Bonds (TSFC) 4,469.0 - 24.9 4,444.1 19.8
Unamortized Premium 1,404.0 260.4 145.8 1,518.6 -
Unamortized Deferral on Refunding (970.5) (188.1) (163.8) (994.8) -
Unamortized Interest on Capital Appreciation Bonds (8,216.2) - (352.4) (7,863.8) -

Non-Bonded Debt

Accumulated Sick and Vacation Payable 623.2 331.9 349.0 606.1 331.9
Capital Leases 311.2 75.5 46.9 339.8 39.0
Loans Payable 1,279.4 - - 1,279.4 -
Net OPEB Obligation 13,501.0 4,696.7 1,379.4 16,818.3 -
Net Pension Obligation 10,857.7 1,980.8 - 12,838.5 -
Pollution Remediation Obligation 80.4 11.8 - 92.2 -
Other 340.3 225.8 245.0 321.1 321.1
Subtotal Governmental Activities 65,049.5 10,663.1 4,622.6 71,090.0 2,775.4

Business-type Activities

Accumulated Sick and Vacation Payable $ 10 $ 06 $ 06 $ 10 $ 0.6
Advance from Federal Government 1,547.1 2,581.0 3,075.9 1,052.2 -
Deposit Fund Contracts 445.7 43.6 89.4 399.9 94.2
Subtotal Business-type Activities 1,993.8 2,625.2 3,165.9 1,453.1 94.8

Total Governmental and Business-type Activities — $ 67,0433 $ 132883 $ 7,7885 $ 725431 $ 28702
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B. Debt Service Payments

The following schedule represents debt service payments for the next five fiscal years and thereafter (expressed in millions):

Debt Service
General Certificates
Obligation Revenue Capital Installment of
Fiscal Year Bonds Bonds Leases Obligations  Participation TSFC* Total

2013 $ 3338 $ 4780 $ 497 $ 12135 $ 2717 $ 198 $ 21225
2014 232.7 505.5 45.6 774.4 23.7 218 1,603.7
2015 298.3 535.7 40.9 827.7 19.6 238 1,746.0
2016 351.0 564.0 40.9 1,095.5 11.4 41.1 2,103.9
2017 222.4 583.5 434 1,066.2 8.9 57.3 1,981.7
2018-2022 906.4 3,434.4 184.5 5,585.9 9.0 381.1 10,501.3
2023-2027 40.1 4,270.5 107.5 4,600.6 - 480.3 9,499.0
2028-2032 - 3,697.2 343 2,261.9 - 611.5 6,604.9
2033-2037 - 3,436.4 5.6 788.7 - 777.8 5,008.5
2038-2042 - 3,193.8 - 79.5 - 2,029.6 5,302.9
Total Principal 2,384.7 20,699.0 552.4 18,293.9 100.3 4,444.1 46,474.4
2013 115.3 673.0 47.7 677.3 1.4 154.5 1,669.2
2014 96.4 646.8 43.7 648.6 13 1535 1,590.3
2015 84.1 619.9 40.5 626.4 0.6 152.4 1,523.9
2016 68.7 592.0 36.5 598.4 0.4 151.2 1,447.2
2017 53.8 562.7 323 562.1 0.3 149.2 1,360.4
2018-2022 112.8 2,349.5 97.8 2,257.1 0.1 698.6 5,515.9
2023-2027 1.4 1,440.9 33.1 1,538.9 - 603.0 3,617.3
2028-2032 - 909.8 35 450.3 - 475.2 1,838.8
2033-2037 - 608.8 0.8 107.5 - 313.0 1,030.1
2038-2042 - 249.1 - 2.9 - 99.0 351.0
Total Interest 5325 8,652.5 335.9 7,469.5 4.1 2,949.6 19,944.1
2013 449.1 1,151.0 9